V4

VIMY

RESOURCES

ANNUAL REPORT

2018




CORPORATE
DIRECTORY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Hon. Cheryl Edwardes, AM
Non-Executive Chairman

Mike Young
Managing Director

Julian Tapp
Executive Director

David Cornell
Non-Executive Director

Andy Haslam
Non-Executive Director

\VEINETRES
Non-Executive Director

Dr Vanessa Guthrie
Non-Executive Director

Ron Chamberlain
Company Secretary

REGISTERED & PRINCIPAL OFFICE
Ground Floor

10 Richardson Street
West Perth WA 6005

T. +61 89389 2700
F: +61 89389 2722
E: info@vimyresources.com.au
W: www.vimyresources.com.au

AUDITOR

KPMG Australia

235 St Georges Terrace
Perth WA 6000

SHARE REGISTRY

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd

Postal address:
GPO Box 2975
Melbourne VIC 3001

Office address:
Level 11, 172 St Georges Terrace
Perth WA 6000

1300 367 027
+61 3 9946 4421

T: Australia
T: International

TRANSACTIONAL BANKER

ANZ Banking Group Limited
1275 Hay Street
West Perth WA 6005

AUSTRALIAN SECURITIES EXCHANGE

Shares in Vimy Resources Limited are quoted on the
Australian Securities Exchange.

ASX code: VMY



TABLE OF
CONTENTS

CHAIRMAN’S LETTER 02
CEO’S REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES 04
MINERAL RESOURCE AND 16
ORE RESERVE UPDATES

TENEMENTS 21
2018 FINANCIAL REPORT 22
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 79
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 82

STATEMENT

VIMY RESOURCES ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Nuclear is simply

the most efficient, safest,
and dependable source of
low-emission, dispatchable
electricity.
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The uranium market is in
the midst of a long-awaited
revival as the supply-side
response to persistently low
prices has begun to take effect.
Despite the depressed market,
Vimy has not merely ‘marked
time’ but has continued to

progress the Mulga Rock Project
as well as acquiring a world-class

project in the Northern Territory.

So why continue these activities in a
depressed market? Why not just fold up
the tent and wait it out?

The answer goes to the heart of our strategy and
philosophy which is to be ‘mine ready’ when the
upturn hits, and it would appear that our timing is
almost perfect.

In those circumstances then, 2018 has actually been
a good year for Vimy. A very comprehensive Definitive
Feasibility Study for the Mulga Rock Project was
released in January 2018 and was the culmination of
two years of intense work by the Vimy team. The DFS
demonstrates that the Mulga Rock Project is a low-risk,
simple operation with operating costs well inside the
cost curve of today's operating uranium mines.

The acquisition of the Alligator River Project from
Canadian uranium miner Cameco Corporation was an
important milestone. Not only is the project located in
one of the best uranium provinces in the world, but

it provides Vimy with a pipeline of uranium projects.
The Mulga Rock Project has a substantial mine-life of
fifteen years; however, nuclear power utilities consider
suppliers’ capacity to provide fuel for decades.

—R

The Alligator River Project provides encouragement to
the utilities that we can achieve that long-term supply.

A growing world needs dependable, dispatchable
electricity. While power-hungry nations are building
coal-fired power plants at a faster rate than they are
being decommissioned, the world is ramping up to
move away from traditional power sources. Nuclear
is simply the most efficient, safest, and dependable
source of low-emission, dispatchable electricity.
Importantly, the Mulga Rock Project will produce
enough uranium to power eight 1GWe nuclear
power plants every year saving about 64Mt of

COs2, or 12% of Australia’s total CO. output.

Currently, nuclear power provides 11% of the
world's electricity, but growth is expected globally,
particularly in non-OECD countries. In the USA,
nuclear power provides 20% of all electricity, and
over 60% of low-emission electricity (followed by
hydro, with wind and solar a distant third).

China recently announced that it plans to install
up to 150 GWe of additional nuclear generating
capacity by 2035. The world currently has 400
GWe of installed capacity; with 59 GWe under
construction, 154 GWe planned, and 376
GWe proposed. This level of build-out will more
than make up for the premature closure or
retirement of reactors in the Western world so
this is a growth industry.

Uranium oxide accounts for only a small part of the
overall cost of electricity from a nuclear power plant.
Security of supply is front of mind for nuclear fuel
buyers who rely on Australia as a safe and secure
supplier of uranium. Australia has been shipping
uranium oxide for more than thirty years. In more
than 12,000 container movements there have been
no incidents that posed a risk to public health or to
the environment. The same cannot be said for the
transportation of hydrocarbons!

About 3.5Mlbs of uranium oxide from Mulga Rock
will be trucked to the port of Adelaide for export.
This will only require 48-50 truckloads a year and is
a small part of our overall costs.

Australia’s uranium is sold for electrical power
generation under extremely stringent safeguards.
Australia was the first country to bring into force an
additional protocol above the Nuclear Non-Proliferation
Treaty (NPT) and requires all customer countries to
have entered into a bilateral safeguards treaty which is
more rigorous than NPT arrangements.

VIMY RESOURCES ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Stakeholders should already have the utmost
confidence in Australia’s rigorous mining and
environmental regulatory framework. All ground-
disturbing activities, from building a suburb to

mining, have a residual environmental impact.
Australia’s regulatory framework manages this risk
and moderates the impacts through the approval
process, and through monitoring and reporting of
environmental performance and impact. The Mulga
Rock Project has undergone a very comprehensive
Public Environmental Review process and has
obtained approvals, with conditions, from both the
Western Australian State Government and the Federal
Government. The Company is now in the process

of submitting all of the work plans required under its
PER approval conditions. All the activities of the Vimy
team are underpinned by the Company’s vision of
‘Mining a cleaner tomorrow’ which captures its strong
environmental values and actions.

The Definitive Feasibility Study also detailed the Mulga
Rock Project’s benefits to Western Australia. The gains
to the local economy are significant, with the Project
expected to generate $200 million in state royalties
over its fifteen-year mine life and create approximately
350 site-based permanent jobs. More than 550 people
will work on the project during construction. When

the mine is up and running, personnel will fly from
Perth or Kalgoorlie by chartered aircraft. In the years

of the Project's development, Vimy has relied on many
suppliers from the Kalgoorlie-Boulder region and will
continue its ‘buy local’ approach when the Project is
under construction and operating.

RC drilling at Angularli,
Alligator River Project,
August 2018

We have seen some changes to the share register
this year in response to changing market conditions.
| welcome the new shareholders who joined the
register following capital raisings in April this year
and July last year.

My thanks go to the Vimy board members for their
tremendous effort during the year. | am always

grateful for their combined experience and knowledge.
On behalf of the Board, | would also like to thank

Mike Young and the whole team for their achievements
during the year. | have seen, first-hand, the huge
amount of work they have done to bring the Mulga
Rock Project through the DFS and approvals
processes and how much enthusiasm has
surrounded the acquisition and early work on the
Alligator River Project. I would like to thank all members
of the Vimy team — staff and consultants — for their
enormous contribution.

The Hon. Cheryl Edwardes AM
Chairman

The acquisition of the
Alligator River Project from
Canadian uranium miner
Cameco Corporation was
an important milestone.
Not only is the project
located in one of the best
uranium provinces in the
world, but it provides
Vimy with a pipeline of
uranium projects.




It’s rare for a CEQ to feel
compelled to use the ‘F-word’
but | feel it’s warranted here.
And that word is Focus.
That’s been our team

for these tough few years;
focussed on, and achieving,
three important outcomes:

e approvals,

e definitive feasibility study, and
e company growth

Last year we completed our State and
Federal environmental approvals for
the Mulga Rock Project. This year saw
the release of the Definitive Feasibility
Study (DFS) in January and the
announcement of the acquisition of
the Alligator River Project in March.
These events demonstrate our focus
on becoming a mid-tier, multi-mine
uranium producer.

The DFS lays the foundation for Vimy to

become Australia’s next supplier of uranium oxide
and the operator of Western Australia’s first uranium
mine. You will see the results of the DFS detailed
on the following pages.

CEO’S REVIEW
OF ACTMITIES

Most of our activities in the second half of

CY2017 underpinned the DFS release. In July

2017 we announced an upgrade to the Mulga Rock
Resource, which saw it crack the 90MIb mark.
Importantly, that update included details of high-
grade zones within Ambassador of 26MlIbs at 0.15%
(1,500ppm) UsOg which will form the basis of our
high-grade start-up strategy on the commencement
of mining. In September 2017, we announced a
major Ore Reserve update resulting in a thirteen year
Reserve. The details of Mineral Resources and Ore
Reserve are found on page 16 of this report.

These upgrades were followed by the

announcement that the uranium oxide concentrate
(UOC) produced from samples from Mulga Rock had
met the quality assurance standards of the international
converters. The three samples were precipitated at
the pilot plant using material from the geotechnical
trenches excavated at Mulga Rock and were chosen
as being closest to the quality we expect to see in final
production. All three converters — Cameco Corporation
in Canada, ConverDyn in the USA and New Areva
(since renamed Orano) in France — confirmed the high
quality of the product, thus providing the assurance
required by nuclear utilities seeking to purchase our
UOC under long-term offtake agreements.

As well as a high-quality product, nuclear utilities

are also looking for reliability of supply. While Mulga
Rock remains our primary focus, the acquisition of

the Alligator River Project from Cameco Australia
shows our commitment to becoming a long-term,
multi-mine producer. Cameco has been actively
exploring in the Alligator River region for the past fifteen
years and we were fortunate to be able to acquire not
only the project but their high-quality data and

key exploration staff.

I'd like to say thank you to every member of the Vimy
team for their hard work this year. I'd also like to pay
particular thanks to the people who have departed
from the Company as we migrated from high levels
of activity during the DFS to our current phase of
exploration and uranium marketing. Hopefully, they'll
e back with us soon as activities ramp back up.
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MULGA ROCK PROJECT

e Located in the Great Victoria Desert,
Western Australia.

Comprises four Mineral Resources:

e Ambassador and Princess, which form
the Mulga Rock East Mining Centre, and

e Shogun and Emperor, which form the
Mulga Rock West Mining Centre,
approximately 20km away.

e The Project is situated on two granted Mining
Leases (ML39/1104 and ML39/1105).

e Vimy holds title to approximately 750 square
kilometres of exploration ground across the
Mulga Rock Project and shares road access
with the Tropicana Gold Mine.

‘Al
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1

AUSTRALIA

FOCUS ON THE N
MULGA ROCK
PROJECT

Test pit at Ambassador
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MULGA ROCK PROJECT DFS

The DFS Executive Summary was released to the
ASXin January 2018 and confirmed the status of
the Mulga Rock Project as Australia’s largest and
most advanced uranium project.

The DFS supports a low-risk, open pit mining
operation at Mulga Rock, with production of 3.5Mlbs
UsOg per annum for at least fifteen years. It is our
belief that a further five years of mine life is possible
with further drilling and subsequent studies. The results
show that the Mulga Rock Project has competitive
cash operating costs, which for the initial five years
of operations — the all-important pay-back period —
are estimated to be US$25.11/1b U:Os.

Over Life-Of-Mine, the cash operating costs are
forecast to be US$27.95/Ib with a pre-tax NPVs of
A$530 million, generating free cash flow of A$134

million per annum (EBITDA) after royalties. These
metrics assume a contract uranium price of $60/1b
UsOg at the time of first production which is targeted
for early 2022.

Most pleasing of all was the fact that the DFS metrics
were delivered on materially lower revenue factors than
assumed in the Pre-Feasibility Study (PFS), released in
November 2015, with the US$55/1b UsOs coming at
the bottom end of market consensus of price incentive
for new uranium mines or restarts (see figure below).
This translated in the DFS pit shells yielding the same
uranium metal production at a significantly lower
uranium price when compared to the PFS pit designs.
The DFS also demonstrated that beyond the payback
period, the pit shell designs are largely insensitive to
changing metal prices.

Optimised Pit Shell Cash Flow Analysis (Ambassador Resource)
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The key physical and financial metrics for the Mulga Rock Project are set out below.
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* Cash operating costs include all mining, processing, maintenance, transport and administration costs, but exclude royalties

Key Metric

Life-of-Mine (LOM)

Plant Ore Throughput

Run-of-Mine (ROM) Uranium Grade (Years 1-5)

ROM Uranium Grade (LOM)

Uranium Metallurgical Recovery

Annual Uranium Production

Total Uranium Production (LOM)

Pre-Production Mining Costs (Pre-Strip)
Mining, Plant, Infrastructure and Indirects
Growth Allowance and Contingency

Total Capital

Exchange Rate
Uranium Cash Operating Cost (Years 1-5)
Uranium Cash Operating Cost (LOM)*

Uranium AISC* Opex (LOM)

Uranium Price Assumption
Project NPV; (inclusive of Royalties, pre-tax)
Project IRR (inclusive of Royalties, pre-tax)

Payback from Start of Production

and sustaining capital. # All-In Sustaining Cost

VIMY RESOURCES ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Unit

Years
Mtpa
ppm U;0s

ppm Uz0s

%

Milbs UsOs pa

Mibs UsOs

A$ million
A$ million
A$ million

A$ million

AUD: USD
US$/Ib UsOs
US$/Ib UsOs

US$/Ib Us0s

US$/Ib UsOs
A$ million
%

Years

DFS

15
24
1,010

770

87.3

3.50

471

36.3
415.0
aM.7

493.0

0.70
25.11
27.95

34.00

60
530
25.3

3.1



I' would like to bring your attention to the quality of our DFS Executive
Summary. If you haven't reviewed it yet, | strongly suggest you download
it from our website. We deliberately designed the document to be
informative and easy to read. It has plenty of maps, diagrams, tables
and highlights so that it is more than just a tick-a-box ASX release.

: I am really proud of the publication produced by the Vimy team and it
v‘:'r was very well received in the industry.

i -
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LONG MINE LIFE AND LOW RISK AND LOW CASH
SECURE SOURCE OF LOW-COST MINING COST, ROBUST
URANIUM PROCESS FINANCIALS

The Mulga Rock Project
is the largest advanced uranium

development project in Australia.

Shallow, simple open pit mining
operation with an average depth
of 43 metres

Cash operating cost for
Life-of-Mine of US$27.95/Ib
UsOs

Total Ore Reserve of 42.3Mlbs
UsOs from 22.7Mt at 845ppm
UsOa

Over 90% uranium mining
inventory for first 10 years
supported by Ore Reserve

Robust pre-tax NPV;s of A$530M,
25% IRR and a 3.1 year payback
at US$60/Ib U305

Total resource estimate of
71.2Mt at 570ppm U;O0s for a
contained 90.1Mlbs U30s

Process plant to use low-cost
atmospheric acid leaching and
resin-in-pulp

Breakeven price of US$44.58/Ib
U;sOs (capital payback @ 8%
discount rate)

Life-of-Mine of 15 years with

State and Federal Ministerial

The project generates A$134M

free cash flow per year (EBITDA)
after royalties

approvals received and secondary
permitting well advanced

an estimated total production
of 47.1Mlbs UzOs

4.3%

BENEFICIATION

Distribution of LOM Cash Operating

Costs by Area

7.9%

PROCESS - POWER

15.5%

PROCESS - REAGENTS

/A

9.2%

ADMINISTRATION

6.5%

PROCESS - MAINTENANCE
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KING RIVER-WELLINGTON
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FOCUS ON THE
ALLIGATOR
RIVER PROJECT

With the Mulga Rock Project well advanced, we took
the opportunity in March this year to turn our focus to
future growth with the acquisition of the Alligator
River Project from Cameco Australia. The acquisition
comprises three separate tenement packages in MT. GILRUTH
Armhem Land in the Northern Territory, covering a

total area of 3,865km? including 1,600km? of granted PROJECT
exploration licences. Vimy now owns the largest
granted tenement package in the Alligator River
Uranium Province.

)

ALGODO-BEATRICE
PROJECT

Jabiluka‘@

]

Jabiru @
()

Ranger

-~

ALLIGATOR RIVER PROJECT

e |Located in Arnhem Land,
Northern Territory

e Covering a total area of 3,865km?
Comprises three projects:
¢ King River-Wellington Range JV

- 1,600km? of granted tenure

- Vimy (JV manager) 75%: RTX 25%

- Highly prospective with limited
sandstone cover O Adelaide

e Algodo-Beatrice Project (100%)

- A group of tenement applications
to the east of the Ranger and
Jabiluka deposits

e Mt Gilruth Project (100%)

- A group of tenement applications
to the southeast of the Ranger
and Jabiluka deposits




ALLIGATOR RIVER URANIUM
PROVINCE

The Alligator River Uranium Province is one of the
most prospective uranium exploration districts on the
planet, along with the Chu-Sarysu and Syrdarya Basins
in Kazakhstan and the Athabasca Basin in Canada.
In the last fifty years, these districts have seen
discoveries such as the huge high-grade Cigar Lake
and McArthur River deposits in Canada and the Inkai
and Karamurun deposits in Kazakhstan. At the same
time, exploration in Australia came to a standstill as a
result of the Three Mine Policy. Exploration activities
were slow to commence once that policy was lifted,
which has given Vimy an excellent opportunity to be
able to explore in what is virtually a new province.

The Alligator River Uranium Province has a proven
exploration track record with over 760Mlbs U;Og

in mineral resources (current and mined) and has
produced a total of 312Mlbs of uranium over the past
65 years. It includes the Tier 1 deposits of Ranger,
Jabiluka, and Nabarlek.

S D st P L

The key to mineralisation in the Alligator River Uranium
Province is the presence of an important rock unit
called the Canhill Formation which hosts both the world-
class Jabiluka and Ranger deposits. We like to think of
the Cahill Formation as the ‘Golden Mile Dolerite’

of uranium (one for the gold tragics).

The deposits of the Alligator River Uranium Province
occur as either large tonnage, medium grade deposits
such as Jabiluka (25Mt @ 0.55% UzQOg for 302Mlbs
UsQOg)" or low tonnage, high grade deposits such as
Nabarlek (which produced 24Mlbs U;Og from O.6Mt
@ 1.84% UsOg) and Vimy's Angularli (0.91Mt @1.29%
for 25.9Mlbs U;Og) hosted by high-angle shear zones.

1. Energy Resources Australia Ltd — 2017 Annual Report
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Luwgurad

B e M

@ Urwrwen Caponi

B g Firver « inlirgtion Farge 5

B fapeco - Deairon Froes [100%)

o et Progect | 100

Core yard at
Alligator River Project
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King River-Wellington Range Project

PROGRESS AT THE ALLIGATOR
RIVER PROJECT

The Vimy team wasted no time in focussing on the
Alligator River Project. During due diligence for the
acquisition, we commissioned an independent JORC
Mineral Resource estimate by Optiro Consultants.
The acquisition of the Project was announced early in
March 2018 and our first milestone quickly followed
with the publication of a maiden Mineral Resource
Estimate for the Angularli deposit, the most advanced
target, based on drilling carried out by Cameco.

The maiden Inferred Mineral Resource for Angularli
(see page 20) 25.9MIbs UsOg for 0.91Mt at 1.29%
UsQg, at a cut-off grade of 0.15% UzOg (Vimy 75%).
The Angularli deposit is located within the King River-
Wellington Range project, which is being actively
explored by Vimy for unconformity-related uranium
deposits. The King River-Wellington Range project

is the subject of a Joint Venture (JV) with Rio Tinto

Soil sampling at the Angularli prospect

Exploration Pty Limited (Rio Tinto), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Rio Tinto Ltd, with current JV interests of
Vimy: 75% / Rio Tinto: 25%.

As well as the maiden resource, we also announced an
Exploration Target at Angularli of between 20Mlbs and
60Mlbs UsOg for 1.2-1.8Mt of uranium mineralisation at
a grade of 0.75-1.5% U;Og (Vimy 75%).

One of the important aspects of this project is the
strong similarity between the geology of the Alligator
River Uranium Province and the Athabasca Basin in
Canada. Both are ‘unconformity-related’ deposits
where crystalline basement rocks comprising
metasedimentary rocks are overlain by much
younger and unmetamorphosed sandstones.

The contact between basement and sandstone
marks a significant break, or unconformity, and
provides a major chemical and physical contrast
providing the right conditions for mineralisation.
Uranium is hosted within low to high angle shear
zones either in the basement or immediately at or
above the unconformity.

A number of advanced exploration targets have
also been developed in the King River-Wellington
Range project. Most of the targets are particularly
attractive due to limited sandstone cover and the
presence of a large area of the highly prospective
metamorphic basement.

VIMY RESOURCES ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Geophysical and surface chemical surveys have

been completed. Rockchip sampling along and
around the structural corridor has identified elevated
boron, gold and sulphur along a structural feature,
analogous and parallel to the Angularli deposit. Termite
mound sampling has also identified elevated uranium
coincidental to the structural feature indicating the
potential presence of uranium within the system.

Field mapping at the Such Wow prospect has identified
very strong similarities between that prospect at
surface and features observed in drilling at Angularli.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Alligator River Project tenements are on Aboriginal
land vested in the Amhem Land Aboriginal Land Trust
and managed by the Northern Land Council on behalf
of the Traditional Landowners. Deeds of Agreement
exist for all granted tenure covering exploration activity
along with commercial terms and conditions for future
mining activity, which ensures that the environment will
be protected and that Traditional Landowners and
local Aboriginal communities will benefit from

royalties and jobs.

Vimy recognises that positive engagement with
Traditional Owners of the land on which it operates is
key to future success. Field personnel engaged early
with various Traditional Owners, to identify practical
solutions to local issues where Vimy's activities

might benefit other land users, and build on

existing relationships.

SAFETY

Vimy's strong health and safety performance

has continued in 2018 with frequency rates for

Lost Time Injuries, Medically Treated Injuries and
Minor Injuries well below the mining industry average.

Drilling at Angularli,
Alligator River Project,
October 2018

Our slogan ‘Safety — The Power is in U’ actively
encourages a culture of safety while emphasising that
safety is everyone’s responsibility. Our focus is on
preventative measures highlighting leading indicators
such as job hazard assessments, hazard reports

and Take 5's.

ALLIGATOR RIVER PROJECT
DRILLING PROGRAM

Vimy'’s first exploration season at Alligator River

Pegan in August 2018 with a 23-25 hole drill program
planned to test the high priority targets along repeat
structures at the Angularli deposit and Such Wow
prospect, 15km south-southwest of Angularti.

Drilling is focused on two outcomes. Firstly, to extend
areas of known mineralisation at Angularli, both along
strike of, and parallel to, the current resource.

This program comyprises up to fourteen holes for
4,650m at Angularli. The second is the drill program
at Such Wow with up to eleven holes planned for
3,950m. This prospect has not been drilled previously
and is highly prospective for ‘Angularli-like’ deposits
pased on Vimy's assessment of surface sampling,
and mapping of geology, alteration, and structures.
The program is aimed at confirming that the alteration
extends at depth and the system contains uranium
mineralisation.

Other planned field work includes surface
geochemical sampling, mapping, rock-chip sampling,
radon emanation testwork and passive seismic data
collection. Part of this program is being carried out
across the Angularli area to provide baseline data

for other future surveys.

Results of the drilling will be released later in 2018.




ANGULARLI URANIUM PROJECT
SCOPING STUDY

A Scoping Study is currently underway on the

Angularli Uranium Project. The Engineering Scoping
Study was awarded to Wood PLC (formerly Amec
Foster Wheeler). Metallurgical testwork at the Australian
Nuclear Science and Technology Organisation
(ANSTO) is now complete and final reporting will

take place in Q4 2018. Testwork results to date

(ASX release 3 September 2018) have shown an
exceptionally high uranium extraction of 98.5% at a
very low sulphuric acid consumption of 14 kg/t, and an
oxidant consumption of 1.4 kg/t hydrogen peroxide.

The Scoping Study evaluated two metallurgical
flowsheets:

e Acid leach / solvent extraction

e Acid leach / direct precipitation

Both flowsheet options have identical front ends
consisting of crushing, milling, acid leach and
counter-current decantation (CCD) circuits. Uranium
drying and packaging plant, tailings paste plant and
water treatment are also essentially the same for
both scenarios. The only difference between the two
flowsheets is the uranium recovery circuits.

The first flowsheet uses conventional solvent extraction
to recover uranium from the leach solution and then
precipitates uranium as uranyl peroxide (UO, x HO).
The second flowsheet directly precipitates uranium
from the leach solution after iron and other minor
impurities are removed. The second flowsheet will
have a very low capital cost but is dependent on

the levels of impurities present in the ore.

The Angularli Mineral Resource announced on
20 March 2018 is the basis for the Scoping Study.

Results from drilling currently underway at Angulari,
as detailed above, will not be incorporated into the
Study as we are not drilling near the existing resource.

MINE DEVELOPMENT

The current conceptual mine development approach
for Angularli which is being used as a basis for the
Scoping Study is similar in approach to the historical
Nabarlek mine located 65km from Angularli.

The Nabarlek uranium mine operated successfully
for eight years from 1980 and produced 24Mlbs
UsOg from 550,000 tonnes of ore at an average
grade of 1.84% UzOg. It has since been successfully
decommissioned and the site fully rehabilitated.

The Nabarlek open cut resource was mined out in
one dry season with the ore stockpiled on the
surface and processed over an eight-year period.
Hypothetically, the underground resource at Angularli
could be similarly mined out over a very short time
frame. The sterllised open stopes could then be used
for tailings paste backifill. It is envisaged the resulting
surface ore stockpile will be processed over a

similar period to Nabarlek.

Mining Plus completed the mine design and initial
capital and operating estimates for the Angularli
deposit earlier this year. Mining costs are currently
being finalised along with stope sequencing and
diluted mineral inventory expected from the
underground operation.

The table below provides a comparison between
Angularli and historical operating data from the
Nabarlek and Ranger uranium mines. The superior
uranium extraction and reagents consumption obtained
for the Angularli deposit are also illustrated.

COMPARISON OF ANGULARLI, NABARLEK AND RANGER LEACH PARAMETERS

Leach Parameters

Temperature (°C) (°C)
pH

Residence time hours
Feed density oW/ W
Sulphuric acid consumption kg/t
Oxidant consumption kg/t
Uranium extraction %

Nabarlek!
(Jul 1983-Jan 1984)

35-40 35-40 35-45
1.6 1.6 1.9-2.0
24 24 24
50 50 585
14 54.7 30-40
1.4 2.0# &
98.5 97.5 91.5

#Operating plant data using hydrogen peroxide mixed with concentrated sulphuric acid to form Caro’s Acid.

* Ranger uses pyrolusite (MnO2) as an oxidant.

1. Fulton, E. J., Caro’s Acid - Its Introduction to Uranium Acid Leaching in Australia, The AusIMM Conference, Darwin 1984.
2. Uranium Evaluation and Mining Techniques, IAEA Proceedings of a Symposium, Buenos Aires, 1979.
3. Ring, B., Uranium Ore Processing in Australia — Past, Present and Future, ALTA Conference, Perth, 2006.
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Primary Supply (Mlbs U,O,)

FOCUS ON

THE URANIUM MARKET

This year the investment community became
focussed on uranium, viewing it as significantly
undervalued as the demand and supply
dynamics have begun to rebalance.

Kazatomprom announced that annual output
continues to be reduced and Cameco Corporation
announced the suspension of operations for an
indeterminate period at the McArthur River - Key Lake
Mine which accounts for primary supply of 18Mlbs
UsOg per year. Other important developments include
the shuttering of Langer Heinrich in Namibia, the
announcement of Ranger’s closure in 2020, and
cuts by Orano in Niger.

Actions by these suppliers that started during

2016 have removed approximately 40Mlbs from the
market. The expected demand in 2018 is around
173Mlbs resulting in a shortfall of 47Mibs.

While some of this shortfall can be met by secondary
supplies, most of it will be managed in the short

term by stockpiling strategies which are simply not
sustainable. New supply will require new contracts,
and new contracts will need to be written at
sustainable prices.

The new investors into uranium include the London
Stock Exchange listing of Yellow Cake PLC in July
2018, which was founded to purchase and hold UsOg,
reinforcing the emerging supply side discipline seen

in the market, and to leverage off any increase in the
uranium price. Other players are expanding or entering
this market, as well as the royalties and equities space.

Importantly, Yellow Cake and the others who are
buying physical uranium are doing so from the spot
market. Combined with Cameco’s foray into the spot
market, this is expected to put upward pressure on
the spot price in the coming months and years.

One could argue that there are strong similarities
between today’s market and the uranium boom of
2004-2007, which culminated in a price spike of
US$H136/Ib UsOg in 2007. However, many of the
dynamics are different, particularly on the supply side,
and a uranium price above US$100/Ib U:Os is very
unlikely. That said, the spot price has risen almost 40%
since April, making uranium one of the best performing
commodities this year.

DEMAND TO OUTSTRIP SUPPLY

Primary
Supply
200 1 2016

180 - l
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- I -3.4
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The spot price has risen

almost 40% since April,
making uranium one of the
best performing commodities
this year.

VIMY’S MARKETING PLAN

In the past three years, Executive Director Julian Tapp and | have ensured that the nuclear industry around

the world is aware of the developments at Mulga Rock. The completion of the DFS meant that we could deepen
our engagement with utilities with a view to obtaining strategic offtake agreements.

In February this year we appointed Scott Hyman as US-based VP of Sales and Marketing. Scott has significant
experience and knowledge in both the procurement and sale of uranium, through his previous roles at Cameco
Inc (USA) and Dominion Energy. His expertise and network of industry contacts have already greatly enhanced our
marketing strategy and increased our access to energy suppliers in the USA and Europe.

Most of our focus is on the US and European markets. The US market comprises 25% of global uranium
purchases. Furthermore, the US market begins to rapidly lose contract coverage at about the same time that Vimy
proposes being in production. By 2022, 60% of requirement in the US utilities will be uncovered by contracts and
by 2027, this goes out to 90%. Vimy is coming into the contracting sweet spot just as we come into production.

From being a rank outsider, Vimy is now considered an important member of the nuclear industry.

The Company is a member of two important organisations, the London-based World Nuclear Association (WNA),
and the US-based Nuclear Energy Institute (NEI). We are active participants in the WNA's working groups which
give members the opportunity to share analyses of the market. Julian’s background as an economist has allowed
him to play an important role in compiling the WNA's biennial Nuclear Fuel Report.

OUTLOOK FOR 2019

As shareholders, now it’s your turn to focus on the Company and its future. The market has
been stubbornly difficult in the past two years and pressure on our share price has probably left
you disappointed. And | know that because | am also a shareholder.

You will have heard this before, but I'll say it again. Our strategy is to be like the surfer in the take-off zone,
waiting for the set of waves and not the guy on the beach waxing his board. We have stayed focussed on
being ready for the waves that are coming. With supply at best static, demand growing, and most stockpiles
inaccessible by market participants, the price has nowhere to go but up. With traders and financial institutions
circling like sharks in the water, a feeding frenzy remains a distinct possibility. Vimy Resources is the single
best leverage play to the uranium price.

Mike Young
Managing Director and CEO
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MINERAL RESOURCE

& ORE RES

MULGA ROCK PROJECT

On 12 July 2017, the Company announced that the
Mulga Rock Project aggregate Mineral Resource had
moved above the 90MIb mark to 90.1Mlbs UgOs,
from 71.2Mt at 570ppm UsOs, with 50% of the global
Mineral Resource in Measured and Indicated status.

On 4 September 2017, the Company announced
that most of the Measured and Indicated material
was converted to Proved and Probable Reserves.
The Mulga Rock East mining centre, comprising the
Princess and Ambassador deposits, will be the focus
of initial mine development, with sufficient mineral
inventory in the Ore Reserve (which also includes

the Shogun deposit) to feed the process plant for the
first thirteen years of production, at a nominal rate of
3.5Mlbs UsOg per annum.

The Mineral Resource at Mulga Rock East has
increased by 30% for a total of 56.4Mlbs UsOg at
680ppm Us;Og compared to the November 2016
estimate (17% increase in grade). The Princess and
Ambassador resources represent 63% of the global
resource as shown on the chart to the right.

OVERVIEW

e The Mulga Rock Project global uranium Mineral
Resource estimate increased by 15% between
1 July 2017 and 30 June 2018, from 78.5Mlpbs to
90.TMlbs (from 67.9Mt at 525ppm UsOg to 71.2Mt
at 570ppm), all reported in accordance with the
JORC Code 2012.

e The Ambassador and Princess resources are
grouped to form the Mulga Rock East Deposit
and the Shogun and Emperor resources form the
Mulga Rock West Deposit.

e The Ore Reserve for the Mulga Rock Project
increased from 31.2Mlbs UsOg (18.7Mt at 755ppm
USOB) 1o 42.83MlIbs UsOg (227,\/”: at 845ppm UgOg),
for a 36% increase in metal and 12% increase in
grade in the Ore Reserve. This was accompanied
by the definition of a maiden Proved Ore Reserve
of 12.8Mlbs UsOs (5.3Mt at 1,055ppm UsOg).

That Proved Ore Reserve is derived from a maiden
Measured Resource of 12.6Mlbs UsOg (5.2Mt at
1,100ppm UsOg), announced on 12 July 2017.

e This Ore Reserve is based on optimised pit
shells derived at US$55/Ib UsOs, and remaining
economic under a broad range of uranium prices.
The optimised pit designs which form this Ore
Reserve are the basis of the mine design for the
DFS announced in January 2018.

RV

- UPDATES

CONTAINED METAL BY DEPOSIT

5% 4o
PRINCESS 4 /O
SHOGUN

58% 33%

AMBASSADOR EMPEROR

RESOURCE STATUS

14%

MEASURED

50% 0
INFERRED 36 /O
INDICATED
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Plan view of the Ambassador and Princess (Mulga Rock East) optimised pit
designs and Ore Reserve classification

Il 2

Change in pit shell boundary with varying long-term uranium price assumptions
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MULGA ROCK PROJECT MINERAL RESOURCE, JULY 2017

Cut-off
Grade Tonnes Us0s U;0s
Deposit / Resource Classification (ppm U305) (M) (ppm)? (Mlbs)

Mulga Rock East

Ambassador Measured 150 5.2 1,100 12.6
Ambassador Indicated 150 14.8 800 26.0
Ambassador Inferred 150 14.2 420 13.1
Princess Indicated 150 2.0 820 3.6
Princess Inferred 150 1.3 420 1.2
Sub-Total 37.4 680 56.4
Mulga Rock West

Shogun Indicated 150 2.2 680 3.2
Shogun Inferred 150 0.9 290 0.6
Emperor Inferred 150 30.8 440 29.8
Sub-Total 33.8 450 33.6
Total Resource 71.2 570 90.1

1. t = metric dry tonnes; Appropriate rounding has been applied, and rounding errors may occur.
2. Using cut combined UsOs composites (combined chemical and radiometric grades).

MULGA ROCK PROJECT ORE RESERVE, AUGUST 2017

Cut-off

Grade Tonnes Us0s U:0s
Deposit / Resource Classification (ppm U;05) (Mt)2 (ppm)? (Mlbs)*

Mulga Rock East

Ambassador Proved 150 5.3 1,055 12.3
Ambassador Probable 150 141 775 24.0
Princess Probable 150 1.7 870 3.3
Sub-Total 21.1 850 39.6
Mulga Rock West

Shogun Probable 150 1.6 760 2.7
Sub-Total 1.6 760 2.7
Total Reserves 22.7 845 42.3

1. Tonnages and grades are reported including mining dilution.

2. t = metric dry tonnes; appropriate rounding has been applied and rounding errors may occur.
3. Using cut combined UsOs composites (combined chemical and radiometric grades).

4. Metallurgical plant recovery factors are not applied to Total Metal content.
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MULGA ROCK PROJECT TOTAL MINERAL RESOURCE
30 June 2018 compared to 30 June 2017, reported at a 150ppm cut-off grade

- ew T e
Slelel o= e

Deposit / Resource Classification (mt)! (ppm)? (Mlbs) (Mt)? (ppm) (Mlbs)

Mulga Rock East

Princess Indicated 2.0 820 3.6 1.3 690 1.9
Inferred 1.3 420 1.2 2.5 380 2.1

Ambassador Measured 5.2 1,100 12.6 5.1 1,105 124
Indicated 14.8 800 26.0 14.0 655 20.1
Inferred 14.2 420 13.1 11.3 335 8.3

Sub-total 37.4 680 56.4 34.2 595 45.0

Mulga Rock West

Emperor Inferred 30.8 440 29.8 30.8 440 29.8

Shogun Indicated 2.2 680 3.2 1.9 680 2.9

Shogun Inferred 0.9 290 0.6 1.1 390 0.9

Sub-total 33.8 450 33.6 33.7 450 33.6

Total Resource 71.2 570 90.1 67.9 525 78.5

1 t=metric dry tonnes; appropriate rounding has been applied and rounding errors may occur.

2 Using cut combined UsOs composites (combined chemical and radiometric grades).

The information in the table above is extracted from ASX announcement entitled ‘Significant Resource Update — Mulga Rock Cracks 90MIbs’ released
on 12 July 2017 and available to download from www.asx.com.au ASX:VMY. The Company is not aware of any new information or data that materially
affects the information included in the original market announcement and, in the case of estimates of Mineral Resources or Ore Reserves, that all material
assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates in the relevant market announcement continue to apply and have not materially
changed. The Company confirms that the form and context in which the Competent Person’s findings are presented have not been materially modified
from the original market announcement.

MULGA ROCK PROJECT TOTAL ORE RESERVE
30 June 2018 compared to 30 June 2017, reported at a 150ppm cut-off grade

2017

Tonnes U;0s U305 Tonnes U;0s
Deposit / Resource Classification (Mt)® (ppm)* (Mibs) (Mt)® (ppm)*

Mulga Rock East

Ambassador Proved 5.3 1,055 12.3 - - -
Ambassador Probable 14.1 775 24.0 16.4 753 27.3
Princess Probable 1.7 870 3.3 1.1 734 1.7
Sub-total 21.1 850 39.6 17.5 752 29.0
Mulga Rock West

Shogun Probable 1.6 760 2.7 1.2 808 2.2
Sub-total 1.6 760 2.7 1.2 808 2.2
Total Reserves 22.7 845 42.3 18.7 755 31.2

1 Tonnages and grades are reported including mining dilution.

2t =metric dry tonnes; appropriate rounding has been applied and rounding errors may occur.

3 Using cut combined UsOs composites (combined chemical and radiometric grades).

4 Metallurgical plant recovery factors are not applied to Total Metal content.

The information in the table above is extracted from ASX announcement entitled ‘Major Ore Reserve Update — Moving to the go line’ released on

4 September 2017 and available to download from www.asx.com.au ASX:VMY. The Company is not aware of any new information or data that materially
affects the information included in the original market announcement and, in the case of estimates of Mineral Resources or Ore Reserves, that all material
assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates in the relevant market announcement continue to apply and have not materially
changed. The Company confirms that the form and context in which the Competent Person’s findings are presented have not been materially modified
from the original market announcement.
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ALLIGATOR RIVER PROJECT

Vimy announced the acquisition of the Alligator
River Project from Cameco Australia on 1 March
2018. During due diligence for the acquisition,
Vimy commissioned an independent JORC Mineral
Resource estimate by Optiro Consultants.

OVERVIEW

e A Maiden Inferred Mineral Resource for the
Angularli Deposit of 25.9MIbs U;Og
for 0.91Mt at 1.29% UsOg, at a cut-off grade
of 0.15% UzOg was announced to the ASX
on 20 March 2018.

e The Angularli deposit is located within the
King River-Wellington Range project.
The King River-Wellington Range project is = Chip'tray sampling
the subject of a Joint Venture with Rio Tinto ~ - “at Angularli-.
Exploration Pty Limited (Rio Tinto), a wholly o '
owned subsidiary of Rio Tinto Ltd, with current
JV interests of Vimy: 76% / Rio Tinto: 25%.

ALLIGATOR RIVER PROJECT MINERAL RESOURCE, MARCH 2018

Cut-off
Grade Tonnes
Deposit / Resource Classification (ppm UsOs) (Mt)!
Angularli Inferred 0.10 0.95 1.24 26.0
0.15 0.91 1.29 25.9
0.20 0.88 1.33 25.8
0.25 0.77 1.49 25.2
0.30 0.72 1.68 24.9

1 t=metric dry tonnes; appropriate rounding has been applied and rounding errors may occur.
2 Using chemical UsOs composites from drill core
3 Vimy: 75% / Rio Tinto: 25%

S L




TENEMENTS

Tenement details for the Mulga Rock Project are
shown in the table below.

On 1 March 2018 the Company announced the
acquisition of the Alligator River Project in the Northemn
Territory. This acquisition was legally completed on

17 July 2018 and as a consequence the changes

in granted tenements have been reported in the
September 2018 quarter.

MULGA ROCK PROJECT TENEMENT
DETAILS AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

Nature of

Tenement Interest Mineral Field
M39/1104 Granted Mt Margaret
M39/1105 Granted Mt Margaret
E39/876 Granted Mt Margaret
E39/877 Granted Mt Margaret
E39/1148 Granted Mt Margaret
E39/1149 Granted Mt Margaret
E39/1150 Granted Mt Margaret
E39/1551 Granted Mt Margaret
E39/1683 Granted Mt Margaret
E39/1902 Granted Mt Margaret
E39/1953 Granted Mt Margaret
L.39/193 Granted Mt Margaret
.39/219 Granted Mt Margaret
.39/239 Granted Mt Margaret
.39/240 Granted Mt Margaret
L.39/241 Granted Mt Margaret
.39/242 Granted Mt Margaret
.39/252 Granted Mt Margaret
.39/253 Granted Mt Margaret
.39/254 Granted Mt Margaret
1.39/243 Granted Mt Margaret
P39/5844 Craries Mt Margaret Drilling at the Mulga Rock Project
P39/5853 Granted Mt Margaret
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This financial report covers Vimy Resources Limited as a Group consisting of Vimy Resources Limited and its subsidiaries.
The financial report covers the year ended 30 June 2018 and is presented in Australian dollars.

Vimy Resources Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and principal place
of business is:

Ground Floor, 10 Richardson Street West Perth, Western Australia, 6005

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 18 September 2018. The Company has the power to amend and
reissue the financial report.

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our corporate reporting is timely, complete, and available globally at minimum
cost to the Company. Public releases are available at asx.com.au by entering the Company’s ASX code ‘VMY’. Additional information
on the Company is available on its website http://www.vimyresources.com.au.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Your Directors present their report on Vimy Resources Limited consolidated entity ('Group’) for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

DIRECTORS

The names and details of Directors who held office during the year ended 30 June 2018 and up to the date of this report (unless
otherwise stated), are:

The Hon. Cheryl Edwardes AM, LLM, B.Juris, BA
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Appointed 26 May 2014

A lawyer by training, Mrs Edwardes is a former Minister in the Westem Australian Lagislative Assambly with extensive experience
and knowledge of WA's legal and regulatory framework relating to mining projects, environmental, native titke, and hertage and land
access. Mrs Edwardes was appointed in August 2017 as a part-time member of the Foreign Investment Review Board for a five-
year period. Mrs Edwardes assists the clients of FTI Consulting with a range of complex statutory approvals required for resources

and infrastructure projects. She also chairs the Port Hedland Intemational Arport, a joint venture company between AMP Capital
and Infrastructure Capital Group and is a Commissioner on the WA Football Commission.

During her political career, Mrs Edwardes held positions including WA Attormey General, Minister for the Environment and Minister
for Labour Relations, She also has broad experience and networks within China's business community.

Mrs Edwardes was awarded an Order of Australia in the Queen's Birthday Honours 2016 for “significant service to the people and
Padiament of Western Australia, to the law and lo the envirenment, and through execulive roles with business, education and
community erganisations.”

Listed company directorships in the last three years: Atlas lron Limited May 2015 to present, AusCann Group Holdings Limited
May 2016 to present, and CropLogic Limited March 2018 to present.

Michael (Mike) Young ESc (Hon), MAIG
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Appointed 17 April 2013

Nr Young was the first CEQ and MD of BC Iron Limited and played an integral role in taking that company to a position as a
gignificant iron ore praducer, Mr Young successfully steered BC Iron through first stage exploration, definition of resources,
feasibility study, the negotiation of development agreements with Foriescue Metals Group and ultimately the profitable production
of iron ore,

Mr Young is a geclogist and a graduate of Queens University, Canada with a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree in Geoclogical
Sciences. His expenence includes base metals, iron ore, uranium and gold, with a strong focus on mine-camp exploration,
resource definition, and mine development, Mr Young was a founding director of uranium developer Bannerman Resources Limited
and is the Non-Executive Chairman and founder of Cassini Resources Limited.

Mr Young is a Director of the Minerals Council of Australia and Chairman of its Uranium Forum,

Listed company directorships in the last three years: BC Iron Limited Oclober 2006 fo November 2074, Cassini Resources Limited
January 2012 to present, Ascot Resources Limited June 2015 fo December 2015 (delisted), and Cycliq Group Limited February
2017 to prasent.

Julian Tapp BA, M3c
Executive Director

Appointed 18 March 2013

Mr Tapp brings a wealth of experience in regulatory approvals. In his previous role as Head of Government Relations for Fortescue
Metals Group, Mr Tapp was instrumental in overseeing and expediting the approvals process for Fortescue's world-class Pilbara
iron ore project from conception through to operation.

Mr Tapp frained and worked as an economist, lecturing at a number of universities, before halding high-level roles in companies
around the globe, including Ford of Europe, BP and BAeSystems.

Mr Tapp i on the Demand and Uranium Sub-Groups of the World Muclear Association's Fuel Report Working Group.
Listed company direclorships in the last three years: Nil
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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David Cornell B.Comm, CA
Independent Mon-Executive Director

Appointed 17 July 2012
Mr Comell is a director of Element Capital Pty Ltd and has significant experience providing strategic and corporate advice io listed
companies, with a strong focus on transaction services,

Mr Comell has assisled several companies, including Vimy Resources Limited, through the listing process and has raised over a
quarter of a billion dollars through debt, equity and hybrid structures for leading resource companies including Atlas Iron and
CopperCo.

Mr Comell is a Chartered Accountant, gaining his experience with the intermational accounting firms Arthur Andersen and Emst
& Young where he specialised in providing corporate and professional services to both Western Australian junior explorers and
international mining companies.

Listed company directorships in the last three years: N

Andrew (Andy) Haslam Grad Dip. Min (Ballarat), GAICD
Non-Executive Director

Appointed 1 April 2016

Mr Haslam is a mining professional with over 30 years of operational and senior executive experience in the Australian mining
industry. He was praviously Managing Director of ASX listed Vital Metals, Managing Director of ASX listed Territory Resources Ltd
and Executive General Manager - Iron ore, with ASX listed Mineral Resources Limited, Prior to these roles, he held a number of
key operational roles in the mining contracting industry in Australia_

Mr Haslam currently serves as a Mon-Executive Director of BC Iron Limited, industry representative on the WA Quarry Managers’
Board of Examiners and a consultant to a number of companies in the mining industry,

Mr Haslam holds a Graduate Diploma of Mining from the University of Ballarat, Victoria, a Graduate Diploma from the Australian
Institute of Company Directors, Diploma of Extractive Industries Management from SEM College WA and WA Quarry Manager's
Certificate of Competency.

Listed company direclorships in the last three years: BC lron Limited from August 2011 to present

Malcolm (Mal) James B.Bus., FAICD, AusIMM
Mon-Executive Director

Appointed 1 April 2016

Mr James has over 30 years’ experience in merchant banking, engineering, manufacturing, mining, energy, financing, philanthropic
and social ventures. Over the past 25 years he has had active roles in identifying, exploring, financing and developing a number of
significant natural resource and energy projects in Australia, the former Soviet Union, the Middle East, Africa, Asia, South America
and the USA,

Mr James has held executive and Non-Executive Board positions on several Australian and London listed companies, business
associations, sporting and not-for profit organisations. He has been directly involved in over AS2.5 billion of aquity and debt financing
and was a founding Director of MRJ Advisors — a boutique resource and capital management firm that was responsible for the
identification, financing and listing of several projectsicompanies on the Australian and London Securities Exchanges.

Mr James iz currently Executive Chairman/Managing Director of Algae. Tec Limited, a specialist algae producer focused on the key
algae-based nutraceutical, animal and aquaculture markets, and the Non-Executive Chairman of Anova Metals Limited.

Mr James holds a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from RMIT University in Melboumne, he is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors (FAICD) and Member Australasian Institute of Mining and Matallurgy (AusIMM).

Mr James is a representative of the shareholder, Forrast Family lnvastmenis Py Lid (Peepingee Trust).

Listed company direclorships in the last three years: Anova Metals Limited from Seplember 2012 fo present; and Algae Tec Uimrled
from September 2014 to present,
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Dr Vanessa Guthrie BSc (Hons), PhD (Geology), Dip. Mat. Res., Dip. Bus. Mgt, Dip. Comm. Res. Law, MAICD, FTSE
Mon-Executive Director

Appointed 6 October 2017

Dr Guthrie has more than 30 years’ experience in the resources seclor in diverse roles such as operations, environment, community
and indigenous affairs, corporate development and sustainability.

Dr Guthrie has qualifications in geclogy, environment, law and business management including a PhD in Geology. She was
awarded an Honorary Doclor of Science from Curtim University in 2017 for her contribution to sustainability, innovation and policy
leadership in the resources industry.

Dr Guthrie is the former Managing Director and CEO of Toro Energy Limited and VP Sustainable Development at Woodside
Energy, and is currently Chair of the Minerals Council of Australia, Deputy Chair of the WACA, a Mon-Executive Director of the
Australian Broadcasting Corporation, Santos Limited, Adelaide Brighton Limited and a Council member of Curtin University.

Dr Guthrie is an active member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and Chief Executive Women, and a Fellow of the
Australian Academy of Technological Scences and Enginearing.
Dr Guthrie is a representative of the shareholder, Resource Capital Fund VI LP.

Listed company directorships in the last three years: Tore Energy Limited up to December 2016, Santos Limited July 2017
to present, and Adelaide Brighfon Limited February 2018 to present.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ronald (Ron) Chamberlain BCom, FCA
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Appoinfed 5 February 2016

Mr Chamberlain has over twenty-five years' experience in the resources industry as a finance professional, with significant
involvement in all the mine stages from exploration through to mine closure. Mr Chamberlain has held a number of senior executive
roles in the wranium industry; he was the inaugural CFO for Paladin Energy where he played an integral role in the funding and
development of the Langer Heinrich and Kayelekera projects, and then Acting CFO and subsequently Non-Executive Director for
Extract Resources prior to China Guangdong Nuclear Power's acquisition of the Husab project. Mr Chamberlain has worked on
resource project developments and acquisitions in Australia, Africa, North America and Asia,

Mr Chamberlain holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Western Ausiralia and is a Fellow of the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand.

Lizted company direclorships in the last ihree years: Ni

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group during the year ended 30 June 2018 was exploration and evaluation on the Mulga Rock Project
with the Definitive Feasibility Study completed during the year. The acquisition of the Alligator River Uranium Project was finalised
after 30 June 2018,

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
During the year the following significant events accurred;

«  On31July 2017, the Company announced the completion of a heavily oversubscribed placement to new institutional and
sophisticated investors which raised 56 million at $0.14 per share before costs. The funds raised were primarily to enable
completion of the Definitive Feasibility Study work programs for the Mulga Rock Project.

. On 6 October 2017, Dr Vanessa Guthrie was appointed as a Mon-Executive Director, representing the substantial
shareholder Resource Capital Fund VI L.P.
- On 30 January 2018, the Company released its Definitive Feasibility Study on the Mulga Rock Project.

. On 12 February 2018, the Company announced the expansion of the Vimy team with the appoeintment of a US-based Vice
President Sales and Marketing.

. On 1 March 2018, the Company announced the acquisition of Cameco's Alligator River Project in the Morthemn Territory,
the largest granted and permitted tenement package in a world-class uranium province. This acquisition was subject to
customary conditions, including third party and regulatory approvals, and was finalised on 17 July 2018 following completion
of tenement transfers (refer to Matters Subsequent to the End of the Year),
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- On & May 2018, the Company announced the completion a placement from new and existing institutional and sophisticated
investors which raised $6 million at $0.11 per share before costs. The funds were raised o camy out an exploration
program at the Aligater River Project as well as 1o progress the battery minerals options at the Mulga Rock Project,

. On 13 June 2018, the Company noted the sell down from its substantial sharehaolder Macquarie Bank Limited from a
relevant interest of 8.74% to below 0.1%.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

OPERATING RESULT

The consolidated operating loss after tax for the year ended 30 June 2018 attributable to members of the Group was $9,545,741
{2017: operating loss after tax $11,500,157). The loss after tax is mainly attributable to the accounting policy to expense all
exploration and evaluation expenditure as incurred.

Key highlights for the year were as follows:

. Other income decreased to $707,818 (2017. $7,724,364) as a consequence of lower research and development tax
incentive grant income in 2018 related to a reduction in activities during the year. The research and development tax
incentive grant income for the 2017 financial year related to both the 2017 and 2016 income tax years.

. Lower exploration and evaluation expenditure of $5,951.592 (2017: $13.597,184) as a result of completing the Mulga Rock
Project Definitive Feasibility Study during the year.

DIVIDENDS
Mo dvidends were paid in the current year (2017 Snil).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s flagship project is the Mulga Rock Project, one of Ausiralia's largest undeveloped uranium resources, located 290
kilometres east-northeast of Kalgoordie in the Great Victoria Desert of Westemn Australia.

After 30 June 2018 the Group completad the acquisition of the largest granted uranium exploration package in the world-class
Alligator River uranium district, located in the Northern Temitory.

As an exploration and evaluation company, Vimy Resources Limited is in the high-risk, high-reward sector of the global mining
industry. Exploration and evaluation companies are the critical front-end of the mining industry with the highest risk, and as such
the Company’s business model is specific to this sector.

During the year the following significant events occurred:

. On 12 July 2017, the Company announced the resulls from a significant mineral resource update at its Mulga Rock Project.
The new mineral resource has increased by 17% to 71.2Mt at 5T0ppm W30, for 90, 1MIbs U0y compared to the November
2016 estimate of 7T6.8MIb LlyO,.

. On 4 September 2017, the Company announced a major one reserve update at the Mulga Rock Project to 42 3Mibs LIyO,
frem 22.TMt at B45Sppm UsOp, including & maiden proved ore reserve of 12.3Mibs from 5.3Mt at 1.055ppm U.O,, and a 36%
increase in ore reserve metal since the last reserve update in November 201E,

. On & September 2017, the Company announced that it had received all results from testing of the uranium oxide
concentrate (UOC) product samples dispatched to three overseas commercial converters, confirming the high quality of the
UQC from the Mulga Rock Project.

- On 20 January 2018, the Company released the Mulga Rock project definitive feasibility study, which confirmed the project
as a world class uranium project, with robust financials and simple, low cost mining and metallurgical processes.

. On 20 March 2018, the Company announced the maiden mineral resource for Angularli deposit at the Alligator River
Project, containing approximately 26Mibs U0y from 0.91Mt at 1.3% Uy0, (T5% Vimy:25% Rio Tinto Exploration Pty
Limited). This is the most advanced of many exciting prospects in this under-sxplored province known to host large wranium
deposits with exceptional grade. This acquisition was finalised on 17 July 2018 following completion of tenement transfers
(refer to Matters Subsequent to the End of the Year).

. On 12 April 2018, the Company announced the polential upside to uranium value at Mulga Rock Project through base metal
by-product credits from copper-zinc and nickel-cobalt mixed sulphide products. These base metals would be separate
products and NOT part of the UOC product,

The Company currently has two mining leases that cover the entire area required for the successiul development and exploitation
of the Mulga Rock Project.
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Financial Position

Met assets at 30 June 2018 were 56,483,983 (2017: Net assets of 54,627 848) and are low as a consequence of the Group being
in the exploration and evaluation phase and expensing related expenditure on granted tenements as incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2018 totalled $6,734,623 (2017: $5,081,972).

Going Concern

The Directors have reviewed a cash flow forecast for the next 12 months from the date of signing the financial report which
demonstrates that the Group will have suffident cash resources to continue as a going concem, subject to successful fundraising
activities during the period.

The Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn and to advance the Mulga Rock project and its exploration and evaluation
activities, including the Alligator River Project acquired subsequent to vear end, depends on its ability to obtain additional funding
through equity, debt or hybrid financing, joint ventures, production off-take arrangements or other means. This creales a material
uncertainty as to the ability of the Group to continue as a going concemn.

In considering these circumstances, the Directors have taken into account the Group’s demonsirated past successes in raising
equity and debt, and in the event that additional funding is not able to be cbtained at the amounts and timeframes anticipated,
the Directors would actively curtail both project and corporate expenditure to conserve cash resources,

For these reasons the Directors continue to adopl the going concemn basis in preparing these financial reports.

If the Group is unable to continue as a going concern, it may be required to realise its assets and/or seftle its liabilities other than
in the ordinary course of business and at amounts different from those stated in the financial report.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND BUESINESS STRATEGY

The Group's strategy is to develop its assets and to ultimately become a uranium producer. At the same time, the Group is
continually looking for other uranium exploration and development opportunities to add to its project pipeline. New assets will be
evaluated on a case-by-case basis,

The Group’s objectives are to develop the Mulga Rock Project by negotiation of offtake contracts with electrical power utiliies,
and funding facilities, and 1o undertake exploration and evaluation activities at the recently acquired Alligator River Project.

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE YEAR
Since 30 June 2018 the following significant subsequent events have occurred:

. Fram 1 July 2018 the Company has reduced Non-Executive Director Board fees by 10% and modified Executive Team
contracts to provide the Company with flaxibility to respand to uranium market conditions in the naxt six months while
maintaining core intellactual property (refer to Remuneration Report).

L On 17 July 2018, the Company announced the completion of the transfer of tenements relating to the Alligator River
Uranium Project in Amhem Land, Morthermn Temitory. The Company has made an assessment whether it had baen
transferred significant risk and rewards, had lagal rights and control to tenure at 30 June 2018, and as such whether the
acquisition should be recognised at 30 June 2018. The Company concluded that the acquisition from Cameco Australia
Pty Ltd was not completed until 17 July 2018 following transfer of tenements, and therefore the acquisition has been
disclosed as a subsequent event. The Company has acquired the project for a cash consideration of 56.5 million staged
over 30 months and granted Cameco a conditional buy-back option. The first instalment of $1.5 million was paid in
July 2018,

. On 20 July 2018, the Company issued 4,030,000 ordinary shares under the terms and conditions of the 2016 Vimy
Employee Share Plan as approved by shareholders on 18 Movember 2016, The shares are subject to vesting conditions
as well as repayment of a imited recourse loan provided by the Company (refer to the Remuneration Repaort for details
of the plan),

. On 27 July 2018, the Company noted a reduction in the shareholdings of the Managing Director Mike Young and Executive
Director Julian Tapp. Their 2013 employee share plan shares were Irading below the June 2013 issue price al the end of
their five-year temmn, and as a consequence the Company bought back the shares in repayment of the non-recourse loan
under the terms of the employee share plan, and then cancelled the shares.

. On 13 August 2018, the Company announced commencement of exploration drilling at the Alligator River Project to extend
known mineralisation at the Angularli deposit and confirm prospectivity at the Such Wow prospect.
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MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The meetings of the Company’s Board of Directors held during the year ended 30 June 2018, and the number of meetings altended
by each Director wera:

Full mestings Remuneration

of Directors Committes Audit Committes
Directors during the year ended 30 June 2018 A B A B A B
C. Edwardes 14 14 4 4 2 2
M. Young 14 14 * * . *
J. Tapp 12 14 * ’ ®. .
D. Comnell 14 14 4 4 2 2
A. Haslam 14 14 4 4 2 2
M. James 11 14 4 4 1 2
V. Guthrie (appointed T October 2017) 11 12 2 3 2 2

A !Nuaﬁm‘nfmulinnsﬂmndhwmmﬂtmm

B = Number of mestings hebd during the Sme thal the Director held office and for which they wene entitled to panicipate.
* = Not a member of the nelevani commitiee.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND OPTIONS

Particulars of Directors’ interests and of persons connected with them in shares of the Graup as at the reporting date are as follows:

Director Number of shares Number of options
C. Edwardes B57,142 -
M. Young 5,538,004 714,285
J. Tapp 3571427 714,285
D. Comal| - -
A. Haslam - -
M. James @ - -

V. Guthrie (appolnted T Ovlober 2017)™ - -

(@)  MrJames iz the nominated representative of Forrest Family Imcestmants Pty Lid, an investmant entity within Andrew Forrest's Minderoo Group
which curmently holds 57,142 857 ordinary shares. MrJames has no direct interes! in this ahameholding of Formest Family imestments Pty Lid.

(B}  Dr Guihrie is the nominated representative of Resource Capital Fund VI L P. which currently holds 92,512,188 ardinary shares. Dr Gulhrie has
o direct interest in this sharehalding of Resource Capital Fund VIL.P,

SHARE OPTIONS
Options over ordinary shares of the Group as at the reporting date are as follows:

Fair value per option
Date granted Expiry date at grant date Exercise price Number of options
17 Decamber 2014 16 Decamber 2019 £§0.31 $0.80 1428570
17 March 2014 16 December 2018 $0.35 $1.54 8714281
17 Marech 2014 16 Decembar 2018 $0.35 $0.70 8,714,283

Mo option holder has any right undar the oplions to participate in any other share issua of the Group or of any other controlled antity,
Mo oplions were exercised during the year ended 30 June 2018,

CONTINGENTLY ISSUABLE SHARES

On 31 August 2018 the Remuneration Committes and Board approved a 2018 short-term benefit of $143 400 future issue of shares
to key management personnel hased on their individual performance during the year. The issue of shares in the future is subject to
an additional service condition through to 30 June 2019, unless the employes is terminated by the Company without cause.

The fulure issue of a portion of the shares is to Directors and a5 a consequence is also subject to shareholder approval,
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ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has conducted exploration and evaluation activities on mineral tenements, The right to conduct these activities is
granted subject to environmental conditions and requirements. The Group aims to ensure a high slandard of environmental care
is achieved, and as a minimum, to comply with relevant environmental regulations. There have been no known material breaches
of any of the environmental conditions.

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

The Directors of the Group present the Remuneration Report of Non-Executive Directors, executive Directors and other key
managameant parsonnel, prepared in accordance with the Corporation Act 2001 and the Corporation Regulations 2001.

The Remuneration Report is set out under the following main headings:
A.  Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
Details of remuneration

Service agreemenis

Share-based compensation

Additional information

m o 0o m

A.  Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

The objective of the Group’s executive reward framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive and appropriate for the
results delivered. Remuneration levels are set to attract qualified and experienced people to pursue the Group's stated objectives.
The Board, through the Remuneration Committee, takes advice on industry remuneration standards through internal database
benchmarking or use of external consultants, During the 2017 year no external consultants were engaged by the Company,

In the 2018 year, advice was sought from external consultants on the short term incentive performance plan for a cost of $7.650.

The Board has established a remuneration charter, administered by the Remuneration Commitiee, which provides oversight
guidance on remuneration and incentive policies and practices and specific recommendations on remuneration packages and other
terms of employment for executive Directors, other senior executives and Mon-Executive Directors,

The Board recognises that the Company’s future performance will be dapandant on the quality of its people. To achiewe its financial
and operating objectives, the Group must be able to atiract, retain and motivate highly capable peaple.

To this end, the Board and management have reviewed and agreed the appropriate people systems required at each level of
company development. These will be implemented over time in order to support the continuing growih and change of the business.

Non-Execitive Directors
From 1 July 2018 the Company has reduced Mon-Executive Director Board fees by 10%.

Fees and payments to Mon-Executive Directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of, the Direclors.
Mon-Executive Directors’ fees and payments are reviewed periodically by the Board through the Remuneration Committee.

The Chairman does not attend any discussions relating to determination of her own remuneration, Non-Executive Directors® fees
are determined within an aggregate Directors' fes pool limit, which is periodically recommended for approval by shareholders.
The maximum fee pool currently stands at $500,000 per annum, There are no retirement allowances for Non-Executive Directors
other than statutory superannuation contributions,

Execufive pay

Fram 1 July 2017 the Company has modified Executive Team confracts to provide the Company with flexibility to respond to
uranium market conditions in the next six months. Refer to seclion C. Service agreements for the specific details on the
modifications.
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The executive pay and reward framework has three compenents:
(i) Base pay and benefils, including superannualion

Base pay is structured a5 a tolal employment cost package which may be delivered as a combination of cash and prescribed
non-financial benafits at the executives’ discretion.

Employees are offerad a competitive base pay that comprises the fixed component of pay and rewards.

External remuneration consultants provide initial analysis and advice to ensure base pay is set to reflect the market for a
comparable role. Base pay for senior executives i reviewed annually to ensure the executive’s pay is compebitive with the
market. An executive's pay is also reviewed on promaotion.

There are no guaranteed base pay increases included in any execulive contract.

Superannuation contributions are made to employees’ chosen superannuation funds in accordance with Australian regulatory
requirements.

(]  Shor-term incentives
The Board. through the Remuneration Committee, is responsible for assessing short-term incentives for key management
personnel. Short-term incentives are established against key performance indicators which are assessed by the Board
through the Remuneration Committes. The key peformance indicators used during the year included Group perfarmanca
in safety, Company share price performance compared (o a peer group, and specific mdividual and Group work program
achievements,
During the 2018 year advice was sought from extemal consultants on the shori-term incentive performance plan for a cost of
$7.650. This has resulted in the Company rawvising the short-term incentive performance plan from 1 July 2018 to better align
execufive reward outcomes with shareholder wealth creation.

{w) Long-term mcentives
Long-term incentives are provided to employees through the 2016 Vimy Employee Share Plan.

When shares are issued under the plan they are subject to vesting conditions as well as repayment of a limited recourse loan
provided by the Company. The vesting conditions assessed during the year related to specific Group work program
achievernents for the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director as approved by shareholders on 18 November 2016.

See section [ = Share-based compensation for further information,

Company performance

The Company is currently focused on exploration and evaluation of its projects and is not expected to generate profits during this
development phase. Share price performance will oocur as a result of the success in progressing project development, quality of the
projects, management's performance and external factors such as commodity price.

Consequences of performance on shareholder wealth

In considening the Group's performance and benefits for shareholder wealth, the Board has regard to the following indices in respect
of the current financial year and the pravious four financial years:

Iem 2018 2017 2018 2016 2014°
Loss per share (cents) {262) {4.11) (5.24) {5.26) {(13.72)
Dividend (cents per share) - - & = -

Met loss (9,545,741) (11,500,157} (11,957.825) (10,725,302} (8,296,813
Share price (3) 0.10 0.18 0.34 0.26 0.35

- The figures for this year have bean retrospectively changed to facior in the consolidation of sharne capital of the Company on a basis that every
T shares wenn consolidated into 1 sharg.
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B. Details of remuneration
Amounts of remuneration

The key management personnel of the Group are the Direciors and specified executives. Details of the remuneration of the key
managament personnel of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017 are sel aut in the following tables.

Cash salary Cash Share-based Value of shares
and fees bonus payments ®  Superannuation { options Total
Directors
Non-Executive
C. Edwardes 2018 90,000 - - 8,550 - 48,550
Chairman 2007 90,000 - . 8,550 67.513 166,063
D. Cornedl 2018 40,000 - - 3,800 - 43 800
2007 40,000 - - 3,800 - 43,800
A Haslam 2018 43,800 - - - - 43,800
2007 43,800 - - - - 43,800
M. James 2018 43,800 - - - - 43,800
2007 43,800 - - . - 43,800
V. Guthrie 2018 29462 - - 2,799 - 32,261
Appointed 7 Oclober 2017 2017 - - - - . .
Executive
M. Young 2018 425,000 - 25,500 ™ 25,000 100,254 575,794
CEQ and MD 2007 425,000 179,775 = = 25,000 302,953 09a2,728
J. Tapp 2018 325,000 - 13.000 ™ 25,000 - 363,000
2017 325.000 103,100 = - 25,000 107.768 560,868
Total Directors 2018 97 082 - 38,500 ™ B5,149 100,284 1.201,005
2017 967,600 282875 ™ = 62,350 478,234 1,751,058

{a)  Cash boous payments to M. Young and J. Tapp in 2017 relats fo both the 2017 and 2016 years. Mo recognition of cash bonus payments ware
mada in 2016 for M. Young and J. Tapp a5 no legal or constructive obligation existed as at 30 June 2016 for the enfitement. During 2017 tha
senvica agraaments for M. Young and J, Tapp wora amended 1o include a short-term incentive entitlament, which has resulled in the recognation
of both 2017 and 2016 cash bonus payments in the 2017 year.

{B)  The shord-lerm benefil sham-based payments in 20138 relabe to an award of a fixed value of fulure issue of shares to key management personnel
based on their indhvidual performance duding the year. The issue of shares in the future is subject to an additional service condition through fo
30 June 2018, unless the employes is terminaled by the Company withaad cause. The share-based payments have bean provisionally expeansed
in sccordance with accounting standards over a two year vesting pesiod, from commencement of the performance period on 1 July 2017 to end
of the sarvice condition on 30 June 2019. The Remuneration Commities and Board approved the award and future issue of shares on 31 Augus!
2018, subject bo the sarvice condition. Tha future issue of shares 1o M. Young and J. Tapp is also subject to shareholder approval.
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Short-term benefits benefits payments
Cash salary Gash Share-based Value of
and lees bonus payments ™ syperannuation shares Total

Key managemant personnel

T. Chamberlain 2018 380,000 - 15,200 20049 = 415,245
Chief Operating Officer 2017 380,000 58,900 - 19616 113,019 &71,535
R, Chamberiain 2018 300,000 = 12,000 = 28,500 - 340,500
CFO and Company -

Secratary 2017 300,000 45,000 28,500 120,508 494 008
Total key management 2018 680,000 = 27,200 ™ 48,549 = 755,748
persannel 207 680,000 103,900 - 48116 233827 1,085,543

{a)  The shor-tenm benafil shane-based payments in 2018 relate o sn award of & fieed value of fulure isswe of shares to key management personnel
based on thair individual performance during the yaar. The issue of sharas in the future is subject ta an additional sarvice condition through to
30 June 2019, unlesa the amployes (2 lerminated by the Company withou! cause, The share-based paymants have besn provisionally expensad in
accordance with accounting standards over a two year vesting period, from commencement of the performance pericd on 1 July 2097 to end of the
senice condition on 30 Jume 2018, The Remuneration Commitise and Board approved the award and fubure issue of shares on 31 August 2018,
subject 1o the sandce condition.

Annual short-term ircentive bonus is a component of the service agreament. Award of incentive bonus is dependent upan the
Group performance in safety, Company share price performance compared lo a peer group, and speciiic individual project
achievements.

For the 2018 year short-term benefit, M. Young received 40% of the maximum annual shor-term incentive bonus (60% forfeited),

J. Tapp received 40% of the maximum annual short-term incentive bonus (60% forfeited), T. Chamberain received 40% of the
miaximumn annual shor-tarm incentive bonus (60% forfeited), and R Chamberlain received 40% of the maximum annual short-term
incentive bonus (60% forfeited). The short-term benefit share-based payments in 2018 relate to an award of a fived value of shares
to be issued in the future to key management perscnnel based on their individual performance during the year. The issue of shares
in the future is subject lo an additional service condition through to 30 June 2019, unless the employee is lerminated by the
Company without cause.

For the 2017 year, cash bonus payments, M. Young received 78% of the maximum annual short-tem incentive bonus (22%
forfeited), J. Tapp received 70% of the maximum annual shor-term incentive bonus (30% forfeited), T. Chamberlain received 77 5%
of the maximum annual short-term incentive bonus (22.6% forfeited), and R, Chamberlain received 75% of the maximum annual
short-term incentive bonus (25% forfeited).
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The relative proporiions of remuneration that are linked to performance and those that are fixed are as follows:

Fixed remuneration At risk - short term incentives Al risk - long term inceniives

2018 2047 2018 207 2018 2017
Directors
Nen-executive
C. Edwardes 100% 595 - . - 41%
D. Cornedl 100% 100% - = s 3
A. Haslam 100% 100% - - Z Z
M. James 100% 1005 - s a 5
V. Guthria Appointad 7 October 2047 100% - = F = =
Exectrtive
M. Young TB% 4% 5% 19% 17% 33%
J. Tapp 96% 63% 4% 18% - 19%
Key management perscnnel
T. Chamberlain BB T0% 4% 10% = 20%
R. Chamberiain 95% 67% 4% 9% - 24%

C. Service agreements

Remuneration and other terms of amployment for carain key management are formalised in service agreements. Employeas are
gligible for long term incentive benefits under the 2016 Vimy Employee Share Plan.

Fram 1 July 2018 the Company has medified the Executive Team contracts to provide the Company with flexibility to respond to
uranium market conditions in the next six months. These modifications relate to the key management personnel service
agreements noted below and include:

. Allowing external consultancy work to be undertaken in the six manths fram 1 July 2018 as unpaid leave for a minimum
period, This minimum peniod ranges from 1 to 2 days per week depending upon the key management personnel and has
been amived at by a mutual understanding and has the effect of reducing ongoing remuneration by between 20% to 40%.

. Reducton in the contract notice periods for the key management personnel from 6 months to 2 months by either party.

The service agreements in effect for the year ended 30 Juna 2018 were:

Mr M. Young, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

. Base Remuneration - 3450,000 inclusive of superannuation.
. Short Term Incentive = Maximumm annual award of 30% of base remuneration.
. Tarm of Agreement — The executive service agresment has no fixed complation temm,

. Termination — The Company may terminate Mr Young's employment at any time with six months’ written notice or the
payment of six months’ remunaration in lieu of notice. Mr Youing must provide six months” wiitten potice to temminate the
agreement.

. The service agresment may be terminated by the Company at any time, without notice to the executive as a result
of misconduct, witful neglect, material breaches of his duties, the executive being charged with a criminal offence which
brings the Company into senous disrepute, the executive becoming insalvent or becoming neligible to hold offica as a
Director

' Change of Contral - if there is a change of control of the Company, and there is a material diminution of the executive's
duties or decision-making authornty wihich is not agreed with the executive, the execulive will be entitled to twelve months
base remuneration plus the equivalent of the full year shart term incentive bonus. This change of control entitlement 1s
inclusive of the applicable notice period.
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Mr J. Tapp, Execulive Direclor

L]

Base Remuneration - $350,000 inclusive of superannuation.
Short Term |ncentive — Mecdmum annual award of 20% of base remuneration.
Term of Agreement — The executive service agreement has no fived completion term,

Termination = The Company may terminate Mr Tapp's employment at any time with six months’ written notice or the
payment of six months’ remuneration in lisu of notice. Mr Tapp must provide six manths’ written notice to terminale the
agreement,

The service agreement may be terminated by the Company at any time, without notice to the execulive as a resull

of misconduct, witful neglect, material breaches of his dulies, the executive being charged with a criminal offence which
brings the Company into senous disrepute, the executive becoming insclvent or becoming ineligible to hold office as a
Director.

Change of Contral - If there s a change of control of the Company, and there is a matenal diminution of the executive's
duties or decision-making authonty which is not agreed wath the executive, the execulive will be entitled to twelve months
base remuneration pius the equivalent of the full year short term incentive bonus, This change of control entitiement is
inclusive of the applicable nolice period.

Mr T. Chambariain, Chief Operating Officer

-

Base Remuneration - $380,000 plus superannuation capped at the maximum super contribulion base.
Short Term Incentive — Maamum annual award of 20% of base remuneration.
Term of Agreement — The executive service agreement has no fixed completion term.

Termination = The Company may terminate Mr T, Chambedain's employment at any time with six months” writlen notice
or the payment of six months' remuneration in liew of notice. Mr T. Chamberlain must provide six months” written notice
to terminate the agreement

The service agreement may be terminated by the Company at any time, without notice to the executive as a result

of misconduct, wilful neglect, matenal breaches of his duties, the axecutive being charged with a ciminal offence which
brings the Company into serious disrapute, the executive becoming insolvent or becoming ineligible to hold office as

an cfficer,

Change of Contral - If there s a change of control of the Company, and there i a mataerial diminution of the executive's
duties or decision-making authority which is not agreed with the executive, the execulive will be entitled fo twelve months
base remuneration pius the equivalant of the full year short term incentive bonus. This change of control entitlement i
inclusive of the applicable nofice perod.

Mr-R. Chamberain, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Base Remuneration - 300,000 plus superannuation,
Shert Term Incentive — Maximum annual award of 20% of annual base remuneration,
Term of Agreemeant = The executive service agreement has no fixed completion term.

Termination — The Company may terminate Mr R. Chamberlain's employment at any fime with six months' written notice
or the payment of six montha' remuneration in lieu of notice. Mr R, Chamberiain must provide six months” writlen notice
to terminate the agreement.

The service agreement may be terminated by the Company at any time, without notice to the executive as a result

of misconduct, wiiful neglect, matenal breaches of his duties, the executive being charged with a cnminal offence which
brings the Company into serous disrepute, the executive becoming insolvent or becoming ineligible to hold office as an
officer.

Change of Control - If there s a change of control of the Company, and there is a material diminution of the executive’s
duties or decision making authority which Is not agreed with the exacutive, the executive will be entitied to twelve months'
basa remuneration plus the aguivalent of the full year shart term incentive bonus. This change of control entitiement &
inclusive of the applicable nofice period.
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D. Share-based compensation
Dwring the year no shares were issued under the 2016 Vimy Employee Share Plan.

Subsequent to 30 June 2018 the Remuneration Committee and Board on 31 August 2018 approved the award and future issue of
shares to key management personnel which is considered a grant of equity instruments relating to remuneration. This grant related
to 2018 shart-tarm benefits in the form of a fixed value of future issue of shares based on individual performance during the year,
but alzo subject 1o an additional service condition through ta 30 June 2019, uniess the employee is terminated by the Company
without cause.

Service
Key management  jneantive Falr valus at candition
personnel plar. Mumber Grant date rant date Vi date end date
T. Chamberiain Short-term  Fixed value of $30,400 31 Aug 2018 530,400 30 June 2012 30 June 2019
incentive converted to shares based
on the closing share price
on 28 June 2019
R. Chamberain Shori-term  Fced value of $24,000 31 Aug 2018 $24.000 30 June 2018 30 June 2012
incentive comverted to shares based
on the closing share price
on 28 June 2019

In redation to 2018 short-term benefits to M. Young and J. Tapp, as the future issue of these shares are also subject to shareholder
approval, these are not as yet considered a grant of equity instruments relating to remuneration.

The 2018 short-terrn benefits are considered to be share-based payments and as a result they have been provizionally expenzed
in accordance with accounting standards over a two year vesting penad, from commencement of the perfformance penod on
1 July 2017 to end of the service condition on 30 June 2013,

E  Additional Information

Shareholdings

The number of ordinary shares in the Company held during the year by each Director and key management personnel, including
their personally related entities or associates, are set out below,

Balance at the Granted as Purchased on Balance at the
start of the period remuneration market end of the period
30 June 2018
Directors
C. Edwardes 857,142 - - 857,142
M. Young 5,238,004 - 300,000 5,538,004
4. Tapp 3,571,427 - - 357427
D. Comall - - - -
A Haslam - > £ =
M. James . i 7] &
V. Guthrie © - - - &
9,666,663 - - 9,966,663
Key management personnel
T. Chamberiain 1,142 857 - = 1,142 B57
R, Chambertain 500,000 - - 500,000
1,642,857 - - 1,642 857

(8 M James it e represantative of Fomest Famiy Invesiments Ply Lid (Peepinges Tiust) which hild 57,142 857 ordinary shares in the Cofmpany
during the year ended 20 June 2018, Mr James hiss o direct imerest in the sharehalding of Famest Family investmants Pty Lid.

{by  DrGuthrie is the nominated representative of Resource Capital Fund V| L.P. which held 52,512,184 ondinary shares in the Company during the
year ended 30 June 2018, Dr Guthnia has no direct interest in this shareholding of Resource Capital Fund V| LP.
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Option holdings
Thie movamant during the reporting period, by number of options over ordinary shares in tha Company held directly, indirectly or
beneficially, by each key management person is set out below.

Balance at Vested and
Balance at the Granted as the end of exercisabile at
start of the perjod  remuneration Exercised Expired the period 30 June 2018
Directors
C. Edwardes # * * - E
M. Young 2,142 B35 - - 1428571 T14 285 T14.285
J.Tapp 2,142 856 2 = 1428571 714,285 714,285
D. Comell - - - - -
A, Haslam - - - - -
M. James - - - - -
V. Guthrie - - - 5 -
4285712 - - 2 B5T 142 1,428 570 1,428,570
Key management personnel
T. Chamberlain - - - - - -
R. Chamberlain - - - - - -
Vesting Profiles
Details of the vesting profiles of employee share plans held at 30 June 2018 by each key management personal of the Company
are defailed below.
% wvesled % forleited %% exphred Financlal year In
Number of Shares Grant Date in year in year during year which grant vests
Directors
C. Edwardes B57.142 17 Dec 2014 -% -5 % a7
M. Young 1,666 667 22 Nov 2016 13% -5 %% 2017, 2018, 2018
M. Young ™ 714,285 17 Dec 2014 ] -% % 207
M. Young 1,428,571 14 June 2013 % % % 2013
J. Tapp 714,285 17 Dec 2014 - -% ] 2017
J. Tapp ™ 1,428,571 14 June 2013 % -% % 2013
6,805,521
Key management personnel
T. Chamberlain 1,000.000 20 Mov 2015 100% % B 2018
T. Chamberlain 142 857 5 Sep 2014 % % % 2016
R. Chamberlain S00.000 3 June 2016 <% B % 2017
1,642 85T

(s} The 2013 share grants io Mr Young and Mr Tapp were bought back by the Company afler 30 June 2018 as thess shares were brading below
thair June 2013 issue price at the end of their five year term. Thia buy back is in repayment of the non-recourss loan undes the larms of the
employee share plan, and the Company subsequently canceiled the shares.
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Details of the vesting profiles of employee share opbons held at 20 June 2018 by each key management personal of the Company
are defailed below.

Number & forfeited % expired during  Financial year in
of Options Grant date 5 vested in year I year the year which grant vests
Directors
M. Young 714,285 16 Dec 2014 -% % % 2007
M. Young 1,428,571 14 June 2013 -% B 100% 2013
J. Tapp 714,285 16 Dec 2014 % % ] 2017
J. Tapp 1428.5T1 14 June 2013 <% b 100°% 2013
4,285 712

Loans to Directors and Key Management Parsonnel

During 2013, shareholders approved an employee share scheme for the Company, As a result, the Company adopted the
employee share plan to be known as the 2013 Vimy Employee Share Plan (‘2012 Plan'), pursuant to which employees (including
Directors) of the Company can be invited to subscribe for shares using financial assistance provided by the Company.

During 2016, shareholders approved an employee share scheme for the Company. As a result, the Company adopted the
employes share plan fo be known as the 2016 Vimy Employee Share Plan (‘2016 Plan’), pursuant to which employees (including
Directors) of the Company can be invited to subscribe for shares using financial assistance provided by the Company.

The Plans provide a mechanism for the Company to invite employees (including the Directors) to subseribe for shares in the
Company and to apply for a loan from the Company to pay the subscription price for those shares ('Plan Shares'), The Company
takes security over the Plan Shares acquired under the Plans unfil the limited recourse loan provided for the subscription price for
those shares has been repaid in full {'Limited Recourse Loan’),

A summary of the lerms of issue and the Limited Recourse Loan(s) provided is shown below,

Mumber of
Grant dale shares acquired Amount of the loan Term of the loan

Directors (or assoclate)

C. Edwardes 1TH2204 857,142 $357,500 up to 5 years
M. Young 2211112016 1666667 $407,500 up to 5 years
M. Young 1722014 714,285 $298,000 up to 5 years
M, Young 144672013 1428571 3246,753 up to 5 years
J. Tapp 171122014 714 285 208,000 up to Syears
J. Tapp '™ 141672013 1,428,571 $246,753 up to 5 years
Key management personnel (or associate)

T. Chamberain 2001172015 1,000,000 $340.800 up to 5 years
T. Chamberain 5912014 142 B5T $69,200 up to 5 years
R. Chamberiain 206/2016 500,000 5158450 up to 5 years

(@}  The 2013 share grants 1o Mr Young and Mr Tapp were bought back by the Company after 30 June 2018 as thess shares were trading baicw
their June 2013 issus price at the end of their five year term. This buy back I& In repayment of the non-recourse koan under the larms of the
armployes share plan, and the Company subsequently cancelled the shares.

Share basad paymant

As non-interest bearing limited recourse loans were provided 1o purchase Plan Shares in the Company and these loans ara secured

against the same Flan Shares, AASE 2 (share-based payments) applies. On this basis, the loan amount is not recognised in the

financial statements.

Loan terms

The key terms of each Limited Recourse Loan provided under the Plans are as follows:

L} the Limited Recourse Loan may only be applied towands the subscription price for the shares |ssued under the Flans;

VIMY RESOURCES ANNUAL REPORT 2018 37



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

(i) the Limited Recourse Loan will be interest free, provided that if the Limited Recourse Loan s not repaid by the repayment
date set by the Board, the Limited Recourse Loan will incur interest at 9% per annum after that date (which will accrue on a
daily basis and compound annually on the then outstanding loan balance);

(i) by signing and retuming an application for a Limited Recourse Loan, the participants of the Plans (each a Participant):

- acknowledges and agrees that the Plan Shares will not be transferred, encumbered, otherwise disposed of, or have
a security interest granted over it, by or on behalf of the Participant until the Limited Recourse Loan is repaid in full
to the Company; and

- authorises the Company (at its election) either to take such action in the Participant's name or direct that Participant
take such action in relation to the Plan Shares as the Company considers appropriate which may include but is nat
limited to the Company undertaking buy-back of the Plan Shares or selling the Plan Shares;

{ivy  the Limited Recourse Laan bacomes repayable on the eariest of,
- the date which is five years after the grant date of the Limited Recourse Loan ('Repayment Date’);
- ane month after the Participant ceases for any reason to be employed by the Company, and

- {by the legal personal representative of the Participant) six months after the Participant ceases to be an employee
of the Company due to their death;

(v} notwithstanding paragraph (iv) above and subject to any voluntary escrow conditions entered into by the individual
Participant, the Participant may repay all or part of the loan at any time before the Repayment Date; and

{wi) on the repayment date the repayment cbligation under the Limited Recourse Loan will be limited to the lesser of:
= the outstanding balance of the Limited Recourse Loan; and
- the market value of the Plan Shares on that date.

In addition, where the Participant has elected for the Plan Shares to be provided to the Company in full satisfaction of the Limited
Recourse Loan, the Company must accept the Plan Shares as full settlement of the repayment obligation under the Limited
Recourse Loan.

Rights attaching fo Flan Shares

The Plan Shares will rank equally with all other shares on issue in the capital of the Company. Holders of Plan Shares issued under
the Plans will be entitled to exercise all voting rights altaching to the Shares in accordance with the Constitution. In addition, hoiders
of Plan Shares issued under the Plans will be entitled to participate in dividends declared and paid by the Company in accordance
with the Constitution.

Sale of Plan Shares

Where the Participant has been granted a Limited Recourse Loan to purchase the Plan Shares; and subject to voluntary escrow,
thase Plan Shares may only be sold by a Participant when the Limited Recourse Loan has been repaid proportionately to the
number of Plan Shares to be sold. Otherwise any dealing by the Participant in the Plan Shares is prohibited without the prior written
consent of the Company.

If the Limited Recourse Loan becomes due and payable and the Participant has not repaid the amount of the Limited Recourse
Loan in full within one month of the due date, then the Participant will forfeit their interest in the Plan Shares as full consideration for
the repayment of the outstanding loan balance. The Company may either (at its election) take such action in the Participant's name
or direct that Participant take such action in relation to the Plan Shares as the Company considers appropriate, which may include
but is not limited to the Company underaking buy-back of the Plan Shares or selling the Plan Shares.

Other transactions with Director and key management personnel related entities

2018 07

Dr Vanessa Guthne provided corporate consulting serices to Vimy Resounces
L;ra'-'rt?d ameem'nl rates, The amount unpaid at 30 June 2018 was Snil
(2017: MIA)

Corporate Consulting Services 50,000

End of audited remuneration report.
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AUDITOR
KPMG was appointed as the Group's auditor on 17 November 2017 in accordance with section 327 of the Corporafions Act 2001,

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

During the period, the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the Parent entity, its related
practices and non-related audit firms:

Consolidated
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
§ §
1. Audit services
Audit of finandal reports and other audit work
under the Corporations Act 2001;
Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd in 2017 {resigned 17 November 2017} - 41,417
KPMG in 2018 (appointed 17 November 2017) 40,300 -
2. Non-audit services
KPMG research and development tax incentive compliance and advisory 700 -
KPMG accounting advisory fees 14,350 -
KPMG taxation return preparation and advisory 17,850 -
KPMG general taxation advisory fees 21,781 -
Total auditer's remuneration 171,381 41,417

AUDITORS' INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

The Company does not indemnify its auditors for ability to another person’s or the Company that may anse out of the conduct
of the Audit.

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on the
page following this Directors” Report.

OFFICERS' INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

The Company has agreed to indemnify former and current Directors and officers of the Company against all liabilities to another
person and the Company that may arse from their position as Directors and officers of the Company and its conirolled entities,
except where the liability arises out of conduct invelving a wilful breach of duty. The agreement stipulates that the Company
will meet the full amount of such liabilities including costs and expenses.

The Company has also agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract insuning Directors and officers of the Company,

That contract of insurance prohibits the Company disclosing the nature of the liability insured against and the amount of the
premium paid. The liabilities insured include legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be
brought against the officers in their capacity as officers of entities in the Group, and any other payments arising from hiabiliies
incurred by the officers in connection with such proceadings, other than whane such liabilities arise out of conduct involving a wilful
breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the officers of their position or of information to gain advantage for themselves
of someone else or to cause detriment to the Company. It is not possible to apportion the premium between amounts relating

to the insurance against legal costs and those relating to other liabiities.
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PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

Mo person has applied to the cournt under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of the
Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf
of tha Company for all or part of those proceedings,

Mo preceedings have been brought er intervened in or en behalf of the Company with leave of the court under
segtion 237 of the Corporations Act 2001.
ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Secunties and Investments Commission,
relating to the ‘rounding off of amounts in the Directors’ reporl. Amounts in the Directors’ report have been rounded off in
accordance with the Class Order to the nearest dollar.

This Directors' Report, mcorporating the Remuneration Report, is made in accordance with a resalution of the Directors.

Y

Michael Young
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Dated 18 September 2018
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KPMG

[ 8ad Auditar's Independence Deciaration under
Section 307G of the Gorporations Act 2001

To the Directors of Vimy Resources Limited

| declare that, to the bast of my knowladage and belief, in relation to the audit of Vimy Resources Limited
for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 there have been:

i. no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2007 in relation to the audit: and
ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit

lfiﬂfé // W

Cerek Meates
Partner

Perth

18 September 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Consolidated
2018 2017
Hote 5 ¥
Other Income [ 707,819 7,724,364
Exploration and evaluation expenditure (5,951,592) (13,597,184)
Comporate and administration expense (3,801,829) (3,809 237)
Financing expense (325,145 (913,419)
Share based payments expense Tib) (174,994) (904 681)
Less before income tax (9,545,741) {11,500,157)
Income tax expense
Loss attributable to members of the Company (9,545,741) (11,500,157)
Other comprehensive income, nat of tax
Total comprehensive loss attributable to members of the Company (9,545,741) (11,500,157)

Loss per share from continuing operations attributable
to the ordinary equity holder of the Company:

Basic and diluted loss per share 4 (2.62) (4.11)

Cents per share  Cents per share

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprahansive income should ba reéad In confunction
with the accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018
Consolidated
2018 2017
Hote -] §
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis k<] 6,734 623 5,081,872
Trade and ather receivables 10 811,820 2,362,665
Prapayments 11 98,274 82813
Total Current Assets 7644, 71T 7,528,450
NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 10 229015 190,506
Prepayments 11 466,540 -
Plant and equipment 12 211,119 299 265
Total Non-Current Assets 906,674 489,771
TOTAL ASSETS 8,661,391 8,018,221
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and ather payables 13 B89 280 2,403 709
Provisions 14 965,960 377,390
Other financial liabilities 15 - 22237
Total Current Liabilities 1,855,249 2,803,236
NOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 14 212,159 587 037
Total Non-Current Liabilities 212,159 587,037
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,067,408 3,390,373
NET ASSETS 6,483,983 4,627,848
EQuUITY
Contributed equity 16 99 475,560 88,248 678
Reserves 17 4,323,109 4,148 115
Accumulated losses 19 (97,314, 686) (B87,768,945)
TOTAL EQUITY 6,483,983 4,627,848

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

VIMY RESOURCES ANNUAL REPORT 2018 43



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Contributed Accumulated
equity losses Reserves Taotal
$ $ § §

COMNSOLIDATED
Balance at1 July 2016 67,727,303 (TE,268,788) 3,243,434 (5,298,051)
Less attributable to members of the Company - {11,500,157) - (11,500,157}
Total comprehensive loss attributable to members
of the Company - (11,500,157} - (11,600,157}
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as oWners:
Issue of ordinary shares net of issue costs 20,521,375 - . 20,521,375
Share based payments expense - - 804,681 204,681

20,521,375 - 904,681 21,426 056
Balance at 30 Juna 2017 88,248,678 (87,768,945) 4,418,116 4,627,848
Balance at1 July 2017 BB,248 678 (87,768,945) 4,148,115 4,627 848
Loss atiributable to members of the Company - (9.545,741) - (9.545,741)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to members
of the Company - {9,645,741) - (9,64E,741)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
Issue of ordinary shares net of issue costs 11,226,882 - - 11,226,882
Share based payments axpense - - 174,904 174,594

11,226,882 - 174,994 11,401,876
Balance at 30 June 2018 89,476,660 (87,314,688) 4,323,108 E,483,983

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Consolldated
2018 2017
Hote £ $
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Interest received 145,173 197,958
Payments to other suppliers and employees (10,202 366) {17,107 &671)
Research and development tax incentive grant income 2,250,621 3,973,698
Interest paid (947,.319) (34,965)
Met cash used in Operating Activities 23 (B,753,891) (12,970,930)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of plant and equipment (124,785) (81,538)
Proceeds from sale of assets - 12,737
Security deposils (228,015) -
Prepaid tenement acquisition costs (466, 540) -
MNet cash used in Investing Activities (820,340) (68,799)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 12,070,000 6,419,898
Share issue costs (B43,118) {370,756)
Proceeds from drawdown of loan - ¥.500,000
Met cash provided by Financing Activities 11,226,882 13,549,142
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents held 1.652 652 508,363
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 5,081,972 4,572,609
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 9 6,734,623 5,081,972

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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REPORTING ENTITY

Vimy Resources Limited (‘the Company') is a company incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The address of the Company’s
registered office and principal place of business is Ground Floor, 10 Richardson Street, West Parth, WA, 6005, Australia,

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 2018 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries, together refarred to as the (‘Group’). The Group is a for-profit entity and primarily involved in uranium project
exploration and evaluation.

1. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
{a) Carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

The carmying amounts of certain assels and liabilities are often determined based on estimales and assumptions of future
events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of cartain assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting penod ara:

i) Share-based payment fransactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by using the Black-Scholes formula.
The accounting estimates and assumplions relating to equity-settied share-based payments would have no impact

an the camying amounts of assets and liakilities within the next annual reporting period but may impact expenses

and equity.

(i} Rehabilitation provision

Significant estimates and assumplions are made in determining the provision for rehabilitation of the project area as
there are numerous factors that will affect the ultimate liability payable.

These factors include estimates of the extent and costs of rehabilitation activities, technological changes, regulatory
changes, cost increases as compared to inflation rates, and changes in discount rates. These uncerainties may result
in future actual expenditure differing from the amounts currently provided,

(i) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Australia. There are many fransactions and calculations undertaken during
the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Sufficient tax losses exist to
offset any deferred tax liabilities, The Group's ability to access existing tax losses is dependent on it demonsirating
achievement of either of two income tax defined tests, being the continuity of ownership test or the same business
test.

(v)  Impairment

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assels, excluding deferred tax assets, to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exisis, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order determine the exient of the impairment loss (if any).
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units, or olherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocated basis
can be identified. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assels not available for use are tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessmaents. of the ime value of the money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimated of the
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the assets (cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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(b) Geing concern

The Group incurred a net loss of $9,.545.741 during the year ended 30 June 2018. The cash and cash equivalents held as at
30 June 2018 was $6,734 623, Current assets exceed current liabilities by $5,789 467 as at 30 June 2018, The Group's net
cash used in operating activities for the year ended 30 June 2018 was $8,753,891.

Accordingly, the Directors have reviewed a cash flow forecast for the next 12 months from the date of signing the financial
report which demonsirates that the Group will have sufficient cash resources to conlinue as a going concem, subject to
successful fundraising activities during the period.

The Group's ability 1o continue as a going concein and to advance the Mulga Rock project and its exploration and evaluation
activities, including the Alligator River Project acquired subsequent to year end (refer Note 26), depends on its ability to obtain
additional funding through equity, debt or hybrid financing, joint ventures, production off-take arrangements or other means.
This creates a material uncertainty as to the ability of the Group to continue as a going concerm.

In considering these circumstances, the Directors have taken into account the Group's demansirated past successes in raising
equity and debt, and in the event that additional funding is not able to be obtained at the amounts and timeframes anticipated,
the Directors would actively curtail both project and carporate expenditure to consenve cash resources.

For these reasons the Direclors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial reports,
If the Group is unable to continue as a going concern, it may be required to realise its assets and/or settle its liabilities other
than in the ordinary course of business and al amounts different from those stated in the financial report.

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reparts that are reviewed and used by the Board of
Directors (chief operating decision maker) in assessing performance and detarmining the allocation of resources.

The Group operates one business segment: Exploration and Evaluation. The activities undertaken by the Exploration and
Evaluation segment including exploration on granted tenements in Western Australia. These activities do not generate any
sales revenue.

Exploration
2018 2017
% S
Result
Segment loss for the year (5,951,592) (13,5597 ,184)
Reconciliation to Consolidated Loss
Segment confribution (5,951,592) (13,597,184)
Corporate and administration expense (3,801,829) (3,809,237)
Finance expense (325,145) (913,419)
Share based paymenis expense (174,994) {904 681)
Research and development tax incentive grant income 558,132 6,150,723
Gain on share issue - 1,346,153
Interest revenue and other income 149 687 227 488
Less from continuing operations (9,545,741) (11,500,157)
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Exploration
2018 2m7
% %
Total assets
Segment assels 1,082 464 357 411
Reconcillation to Consolidated Total Assets
Segment assels 1,082 464 357411
Corporate and administration assets T.468 927 7,660,810
Total assels 8,551,391 8,018 221
Total liabllities
Segment liabilities 1,168,733 1,557,655
Reconciliation to Consolidated Total Liabilities
Segment liabilities 1,168,733 1,557,655
Corporate and administration liabilities 892,675 1,832,718
Total iabilities 2,067 408 3,390,373

4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activiies may expose it to a varety of financial risks in the future such as market risk (including fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group's overall financial risk management focuses on the unpredictability of the
financial markets and seaks to minimise potential adverse affects on the financial performance of the Group.

Risk management is carried out under an approved framework covering a risk management policy and internal compliance
and control by management. The Board identifies, evaluates and approves measures to address financial risks.

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Consolidated
2018 2017
1 5
Financlial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,734,623 5,081,872
Trade and other receivables — cument 209,225 21,904
Trade and other receivables — non-current 229015 190,508
772,863 5,294 382
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables — current 841,510 2,282,159
Other financial liabilities — current - 22,237
841,510 2,304,396
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(a) Marketrisk
Cash flow and fair value interest rate nsk

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from cash deposits. Deposits at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
nterest rate risk, Deposits at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate fisk. During 2018 and 2017, the Group's
deposits at vanable rates were denominated in Australian dollars.

As at the reporiing date, the Group had the following variable rate cash at bank and fixed rate short-term deposits:

2018 2nmy
Welghted Welighted
average Balance average Balance
interest rate % Interest rate H
Short-term deposits 4,500,000 4.500,000
Cash at bank 2234 623 581,972
Met exposure to cash flow interest rate risk 2.02% 6,734,623 1.96% 5,081,972

The Group analyses its interest rale exposure on each occasion a deposit term expires, The Group aims to maximise nterest
returns from available funds and at the same time retain operating flexibility through adequate access to funds. During 2018
and 2017 if interest rates had been 10% higher or lower than the prevailing rates realised, with all other vanables held
constant, there would be an immalerial change in post-tax loss for the year. Equity would not have been materially impacted.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financial
institutions.

Credit risk anses from cash and cash equivalents, denvative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures on outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks and financial
nstitutions, the Group will only hold deposits with A or better rated banks or financial institutions. All funds are cumrently
banked with the Australian and New Zealand Banking Group Limited. Receivables are generally limited to Goods and
Services Tax refunds or Research and Development Tax Incentive grant income from the Australian Taxation Cffice.

Events leading to other receivables are reviewed on a case by case basis and if there is no independent rating, management
assesses the credit quality of the transaction party, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors,

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of the financial assets as summarised at the
beginning of this note, All receivables at 30 June 2018 are expected to be received within three months,

(g) Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit faciliies and the ability to close-out market positions. The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously
monitaring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Group will
aim al maintaining flexibility in funding by accessing appropnate committed credit lines available from differant counterparties
where appropriate and possible. Surplus funds when available are generally only invested in high credit quality financial
institutions in highly liquid markets.

Maturities of financial fabilities

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s financial liabilifies have contractual maturities (including interest payments where applicable)
as summarised below:

Current Non-current
Later than
‘Within al; Months Six - Tum;-- Months Omne = Fl;u Years Five ;‘nu
30 June 2018
Trade and other payables 841,510 - - -
Total 841,510 - - -
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This compares to the maturity of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities in the previous reporting periods as follows:

Later than
Within Six Months  Six - Twelve Months One - Five Years Five Years
H $ 5 $
30 June 2017
Trade and other payables 1,559,222 1,044 8419 - -
Other financial liabiities - 22237 - -
Total 1,559,222 1,067,078 - }

(d) Capital management

The Group's capital management objective is to ensure adequate funding is obtained to enable it to progress its explomation
and evaluation activities, while retaining sufficiant cash reserves to ensure the Group confinues as a going concern. As a
project development company, funds for activities are generally sourced from equity markets, assat sales, or from borrowing
facilities. The Group has utilised equity raisings and borrowings in the past to maintain adequate funding. The Board monitors
cash resources against expenditure forecasts associated with the Company's stated growth strategies and development plans
to assess financial requirements,

(e} Fair value estimation

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three
Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined basad on the obsarvability of significant inputs 1o the
measurement, as follows:

«  Level 1 guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or kability, either
directly or indiractly

s«  Level 3 unobservable inputs for the asset or fiability

There were no financial assets measured at fair value which required allocation info the Levels of fair value hierarchy at
30 June 2018 or 30 June 2017,

There were no financial liabiiies measured at fair value which required allocation info the Levels of fair value hierarchy at
30 June 2018, At the 30 June 2017 $22 237 of financial liabilities were classified al Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Value technigues used to derive Level 2 fair values

The fair value of financial instruments that are nol fraded in an aclive market is determined using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable marke! data where it is available and rely as little as possible
an enfity specific estmales.

The fair value of the embedded derivatives associaled with the RCF VI Bridge Finance facility are valued using a Black-
Scholes option pricing model that takes inlo account the exercise price, term of the facilities, non-tradeable nature of the
facilities, the share price at drawdown date and expected share price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend
yield, and the risk-free rate for the term of the facility.

The table below summarises the moadel inputs for the bridge finance facility embedded dervatives as at 30 June 2017:

Dividend yield 0%
Expected volatility of Company's shares 101%
Rigk-fres rate 1.75%
Term remaining {years) 0.75
Conversion price (cents) 30
Underlying security spot price at valuation date {cents) 18
Valuation date 30 June 2017
Black-Scholes valuation per share £0.0342
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4. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Consolidated
2018 207
Basic and diluted loss per share (cents per share) (2.62) cents (4.11) cents
Loss after tax used in the calculation of basic and diluted EPS $(9,545,741) §(11,500.157)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year used
in calculations of loss per share #364 167 577 #279 44T 019

There are 18 857 136 (2017: 21,714,274} potential ordinary shares in the form of unlisted options that have not been included
in the dilutive EPS calculation because they are anti-dilutive.

5. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSOMNNEL DISCLOSURE
(a) Key management personnel

In addition to the Directors the following persons had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Group, directly or indirecily, during the year:

Name Position Employer
T. Chamberlain Chief Operating Officer Vimy Resources Limited
R. Chamberlain Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary Vimy Resources Limited
(b) Key management personnel compensation
Consolidated
2018 27
$ 5

Short-term benefits — cash salary and fees 1,677,062 1,647,600
Short-term benefits — cash bonus = 3BB, 775
Short-tarm benefits = share-based payments 65,700 -
Post-employment benefits 113,698 110,466
Long-term incentives - share-based payments 100,284 711,761

1,956,754 2,856,602

(¢) Loans to Director and Key Management Personnel

During 2013, shareholders approved a new employes share scheme for the Company. As a result, the Company adopted the
employee share plan to be known as the 2013 Vimy Employea Share Plan (2013 Plan’}, pursuant to which certain employees
(including Directors) of the Company can be invited to subscribe for shares using financial assistance provided by the
Company.

During 2016, shareholders approved a new employee share scheme for the Company. As a result, the Company adopted the
employee share plan to be known as the 2016 Vimy Employee Share Plan (‘2016 Plan’), pursuant to which certain employees
(including Directors) of the Company can be invited to subscribe for shares using financial assistance provided by the
Companmny.

The Plans provide a mechanism for the Company to invite emplayees (including the Directors) to subscribe for shares in the
Company and to apply for a loan from the Company to pay the subscription price for those shares ('Plan Shares'). The
Company takes security over the Shares acquired under the Plans until the limited recourse loan provided for the subscription
price for those shares is repaid in full {'Limited Recourse Loan'),

Subsequent to shareholder approval of the Plans and separate shareholder approval to issue shares to Directors, a summarny
of the tamns of issue and the Limited Recourse Loan provided is shown below.
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Humber of

Grant Date shares acquired Amount of the loan Term of the loan
Directors (or associate)
C. Edwardes 171122014 BET 142 $357,500 up to 5 years
M. Young 221172016 1.666.667 5407 500 up to 5 years
M. ¥oung 1TM22014 714 285 £298 000 up to 5 years
M. Young ™ 14/6/2013 1.428,5M 5246,753 up to 5 years
J. Tapp 1711212014 714,285 $298,000 up to 5 years
J. Tapp ™ 14/6/2013 1428571 $246,753 up to 5 years
Key management personnel (or associate)
T. Chamberain 20172015 1,000,000 £340,800 up'to 5 years
T. Chamberlain S/92014 142 857 369,200 up to 5 years
R. Chamberiain 3106/2016 500,000 $158,450 upto 5 years

{a}  The 2013 share grants 1o Mr Young and Mr Tapp were bought back by the Comparny after 30 June 2018 as (hese shates wars trading below
Their June 2013 issue price at the end of the five year bem. This buy back is in repaymend of the non-recourse loan under B lerms of the
employes share plan and the Company has subsequantly cancelied the shares.

Shara based payment

As non-interest bearing imited recourse loans were provided to purchase Plan Shares in the Company and these [oans are
sacured against the same Plan Shares, AASE 2 (share-based payments) applies. On this basis, the [oan amount is not
recognised in the financial stalements.

Loan ferms
The key terms of each Limited Recourse Loan provided under the Plans are as follows:
(I} the Limited Recourse Loan may only be applied towards the subscrption price for the shares issued under the Plans,

(il the Limited Recourse Loan will be interest free. provided that if the Limited Recourse Loan is not repaid by the
repayment date set by the Board, the Limited Recourse Loan will incur interest at 8% per annum after thal date (which
will acerue on a daily basis and compound annually on the then cutstanding loan balance),

(i} by signing and returning an application for a Limited Recourse Loan, the participants of the Plans (each a Participant):

- acknowledges and agrees that the Plan Shares will not be transferred, encumbered, otherwise disposed of, or
have a security interest granted over it, by or on behalf of the Participant until the Limited Recourse Loan is repaid
in full to the Company; and

- authorises the Company (at its election) either to take such action in the Parficipant’s name or direct that
Participant take such action in relation to the Plan Shares as the Company considers appropriate which may
include but is not limited to the Company undertaking buy-back of the Plan Shares or selling the Plan Shares:

{iv) the Limited Recourse Loan becomes repayable on the earliest of;
= the date which iz five years after the grant date of the Limited Recourse Loan ('Repayment Date’);
- one month after the Participant ceases for any reason to be employed by the Company; and

= (by the legal personal representative of the Participant) six months after the Participant ceases to be an employes
of the Company due to their death;

(v} notwithstanding paragraph (iv) above and subject to any voluntary escrow conditions entered into by the individual
participant, the Participant may repay all or part of the loan at any time before the Repayment Date; and

(vi) the Limited Recourse Loan will be limited recourse such that on the repayment date the repayment obligation under the
Limited Recourse Loan will ba [imited to the lessar of

- the outstanding balance of the Limited Recourse Loan; and
- the market value of the Plan Shares on thal date,
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In addition, where the Participant has elected for the Plan Shares to be provided to the Company in full satisfaction of the
Limited Recourse Loan, the Company must accept the Plan Shares as full settlement of the repayment obligation under the
Limited Recourse Loan.

Rights attaching fo Plan Shares

The Plan Shares will rank equally with all other shares on issue in the capital of the Company. Holders of Plan Shares issued
under the Flan will be entitled to exercise all veting rights attaching to the Shares in accordance with the Constitution,

In addition, holders of Plan Shares issued under the Plan will be entitled to participate in dividends declared and paid by the
Company in accordance with the Consfitution.

Sale of Plan Shares

Where the Participant has been granted a Limited Recourse Loan to purchase the Plan Shares; and subject to voluntary

escrow those Plan Shares may only be sold by a Participant when the Limited Recourse Loan has been repaid proportionately
to the number of Plan Shares to be sold. Otherwise any dealing by the Participant in the Plan Shares is prohibited without the

prior written consent of the Company.

If the Limited Recourse Loan becomes due and payable and the Participant has not repaid the amount of the Limited
Recourse Loan in full within one month of the due date, then the Participant will forfeit their interest in the Plan Shares as
full cansideration for the repayment of the outstanding loan balance, The Company may either (at its election) take such
action in the Participant's name or direct that Participant take such action in relation to the Plan Shares as the Company
considers appropriate, which may include but is not limited to the Company underiaking buy-back of the Plan Shares or
selling the Plan Shares.

(d) Other transactions with Director and key management personnel related entities

Consolidated
218 2017

Dr Vanessa Guthrie provided corporate consulting services to Vimy Resources
Limited at commercial rates. The amount unpaid at 30 June 2018 was 3nil
(2017: MIA)

Corporate Consulting Services 50,000 }

(8) Vesting profiles of share based payments to key management personnel

Details of the vesting profiles of employee share options held by each key management personal of the Company are detailed below.
% vestedin % forfeited in % expired during Financial year in

Number of Options Grant date year year the year which grant vests
Directors
M. Young 714,285 16 Dec 2014 % = % 2017
M. Young 1,428,571 14 June 2013 % =% 100% 2013
J, Tapp 714,285 16 Dec 2014 & =% % 2017
J. Tapp 1,428,571 14 June 2013 % - 100% 2013
4,285,712
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Details of the vesting profiles of employee share plans held by each key management personal of the Company are detailed below.

% forfeited % expired Financial year in
Number of Shares Grant date % vested in year in year during the year  which grant vests
Directors
. Edwardes 857,142 17 Dec 2014 - %% % 2017
M. Young 1,666,667 22 Nov 2016 13% % % 2017, 2018, 2019
M. Young ™ 714,285 17 Dac 2014 =% % % 2017
M. Young 1,428,571 14 June 2013 % = %% 2013
J. Tapp 714,285 17 Dec 2014 - %% % 2017
J. Tapp @ 1,428,571 14 June 2013 % T =% 2013
6,809,521
Key Management Personnel
T. Chamberlain 1,000,000 20 Nov 2015 100% % e 2018
T. Chamberlain 142,857 5 Sep 2014 9 % % 2016
R. Chamberlain 500,000 3 June 2016 % 5% -% 2017
1,642,857

()  The 2013 share grants to Mr Young and Mr Tapp wers bought back by the Company after 30 June 2018 as these shares wane trading below
iheir June 2013 issue price al the end of their five year term. This buy back is in repaymend of the non-recourse loan under the terms of the
employee share plan, and the Company subsequently cancelled the shares.

6. OTHER INCOME

Consolidated
2018 2017
$ §
Interest revenue 148,462 193,761
R&D tax incentive grant incarme ® 558,132 6,150,723
Gain on share issue - 1,346,153
Other income 225 iy
TO7 819 7,724,364

(a) The research and development tax incentive grant income for the 2018 financial year relales to the 2018 income tax
year. The research and development tax incentive grant income for the 2017 financial year relates to both the 2017 and
2016 income tax years,
7. LOSSFOR THE YEAR
The loss from ordinary activities before income tax has been determined after:

Consolidated

2018 2017

% $
(a) Expenses

Depreciation expense 214,335 222 927
Operating leases costs 337,958 324279
Audit and review fees 40,300 41,47
582,593 598,623
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(b)

()

Employee benefits expense

Wages, salaries and Directors'’ fees

Defined contribution superannuation expense
Share based payments expense (refer Note 18(d))
Other employee benefits

Embedded derivative

Fair value movement on embedded derivative (refer Note 15)

8. INCOME TAX BENEFIT

(a)

(b)

Income tax recognised

Mo income tax s payable by the Group as it recorded losses for income tax purposes for the year,

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Loss after income tax
Income tax expense
Loss bafore incoma fax

Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate of 30 percent
{2017: 30 parcent)

Mon-deductible expenses and non-assessable income

Equity based remuneration

Research and devalopmant grant incentive incomea

Research and development expenditure

Commercial debt forgiveness

Reduction of tax losses

Movement in deferred tax assets not brought to account as future
income tax benefits

Under recognition in prior year of deferred tax assets not brought to
account as future income tax benefits

Consolidated

2018 207
% %

4 127 420 4 428 272
279,941 288,608
174,994 204 681

33423 3.2
4 615,778 5652, 792
(22,237) 181
Consolidated
2018 2017
$ $

(9,545,741) (11,500,157}

(9,545,741) (11,500,157)

(2,863,722) (3,450,047)

4,713 4,964
52,498 271,404
(167.440) {1,845217)
334183 1,501,397
- (409 546)
- 409 545
2 B39, 788 BEE BT
2,650,820
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(¢) WUnrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Consolidated
Deferred tax assels and liahilities are atfnibutable to the following: :u;g m;r
Property, plant and equipment 57,539 27327
Accrued income (8,990) (5.817)
Employes provisions 161,344 137077
540-880 costs 307,714 177,647
Other costs 90,787 128,880
Loans and bomowings - 2412
Rehabiitation provision 199,975 159,129
Tax losses 21938811 19,018,840
Met tax assets 22,747 180 19,8567 495
Unrecognised tax assats (22,747,180) (19,867 495)

On 1 July 2007, Vimy Resources Limited and its whally-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax
consolidation group under the Tax Consolidation Regime. Each entity in the Group will continue to recognise its own current
and deferred tax liabilities, except for any deferred tax assets resulting from unused tax losses and tax credits, which are
immediately assumed by the Parent entity. The current tax iability of each Group entity will then subsequently be assumed
by the Parent entity. The tax consolidated group entered into a tax sharing agreement whereby each company in the Group
contributes to the income tax payable in propertion to their contribution to profit before tax of the tax consolidated group.

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Consolidated
2018 2017
§ §
Cash at bank and in hand 2,234,623 581,972
Short-term deposits 4,500,000 4,500,000
6,734,623 5,081,972

(a) <Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial pericd as per the statement of cash flows.

(b) Cash at bank and on hand includes interast-bearing amounts. The weighted average rate applicable to the Group's
balance at 30 June 2018 was 2.02% (2017: 1.96%).

10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Consolidated
2018 2017
% 5

Current
Other receivables 26,186 21,904
R&D Tax Incentive Grant receivable 484 536 2177025
Security deposit (a) 190,506 -
Goods and services tax receivable 110,592 164,736

811,820 2,363,665
Non-Current
Security deposit (b) (a) 229015 190,506

(a) The security deposit for $190,506 (2017: $190,506) is cash secunly required for a bank guarantee related to the office
lease at 10 Richardson Street, West Perth,

(6) The security deposit of $229,015 (2017: MfA) is cash security for a bank guarantee relating to the Alligator River Project
in the Morthem Termitory.
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1.

PREPAYMENT

Current
Deposits for tenement applications

Other prepayments

Mon-Current
Tenement acquisition costs

Consolidated
2018 20T
$ $
92,797 78,995
5477 3,818
98,274 82,813
466,540 -

(a) The lanement acquisiion costs relate 1o the purchase of the Alligator River Project from Cameco Australia Pty Ltd that

was finalised on 17 July 2018, refer Note 26 for further disclosure.

PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

Office equipment
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Total office equipment
Exploration equipment

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Total exploration equipnment

Total office and exploration equipment

Movements in the carrying amounts of each class of assets at the beginning
and end of the current financial period is as set out below:

Office equipment

Balance at the beginning of year
Additions

Depreciation expanse

Carrying amount at the end of the year
Expleration equipment

Balance at the baginning of year
Additions

Depreciation expanse

Carrying amount at the end of the year
Total carrying amount at the end of the year

Consolidated
2018 2m7
$ s
261,471 332,714
(238,975) (300,335)
22,496 32,379
1,482 561 1,424 387
(1,293,938) (1,157,501)
188,623 266,886
211,119 299 265
32379 45 359
18,987 16,156
(28,870} (29,136)
22 496 32370
266,886 365,396
107.202 75,280
(185,465) (193,790)
188,623 DEE BEE
211,119 299 265
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13.

14,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current
Trade payables and accruals
Interest payable ®

Consolidated
2018 2017
$ ]
784,395 1,677,905
104,894 725,804
889,289 2,403,709

(a) Interest payable relates to the Resource Capital Fund VI L.P. (RCF") Bridge Facility Agreement which was fully repaid
in January 2017. Interest on the facility contained a deferred interest component of 11% payable on 31 March 2018 if
certain circumstances were not met. As the Company did not meet all the circumstances the majority of the deferred
interest was repaid during the curment financial year, with the balance repaid in July 2018.

PROVISIONS

CURRENT

Employee entitement: Annual Leave
Opening balance

Employee entittements provided for
Employee entitlements used

Closing balance

The current provision relates to annual leave for employees of the Group.
The provision is expected to be used over the forthcoming bwelve months.

Employee entitiement: Long Service Leave
Opening balance

Employee entitlements provided for
Reclassification from non-current

Closing balance

Rehabilitation

Opening balance

Reclassification from/(to) non-current
Closing balance

The Group has a provision for rehabilitation relating to the geatechnical test
pits designed to provide informaltion inputs into the Definitive Feasibility
Study for the Mulga Rock Project. The rehabilitation work is to be
completed by March 2019 (2018: Cument; 2017 Non-Current).

Total eurrent prevision
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Consolidated
018 207
$ $
302632 246,028
187,980 250,907
(171,194} (194,303)
319,418 302,632
74,758 -
28,349 37,697
7,766 37,061
110,873 74,758
- 451,460
535,669 (451,480)
535,669 -
965,960 377,380

59



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 JUNE 2018

15.

NOMN-CURRENT

Employee entithement: Long Service Leave
Opening balance

Employee entitlernents provided for
Reclassification to current

Closing balance

Rehabilitation

Opening balance
Reclassification from/(to) current
Rehabilitation provided for
Closing balance

The Group has a provision for rehabilitation refating to the Mulga Rock
Project airstrip, roads and camp site.

Total non-current provision

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Current
Embaddad dervatives ™
Total

Consolidated
2018 2017
$ §
56,608 79,870
32,404 13,799
(7.7686) (37,061)
81,246 56,608
530,429 -
(535,669) 451,460
136,153 78,969
130,913 530,429
212,159 587,037
Consolidated
2018 2017
4 5
- 22237
- 22,237

(a) The embedded derivative relates to the Resource Capital Fund V| L.P. ('RCF") Bridge Facility Agreement, where RCF
held a conversion prica option to convert deferred interest payable (refer Mote 13) into shares at a fixed price. This
option expired unexercised durng the current financial year, At 30 June 2017 the fair value of this embedded derivative

was 522 237,
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16. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
414,734 372 (2017 316,885,800) fully paid ordinary shares

Consolidated
Number §

Ordinary shares

At 1 July 2018 229,761,367 67,727,303
5 July 2016 Share placement @& 30 cents per shane 213,937 B4, 181
29 August 2016 Share placement @ 31 cents per share 281,776 87,350
31 August 2016 Share buy back (100,000) -
30 September 2016 Share placement @ 26 cents per share 24,093 844 6,264,400
3 October 2016 Share placement @ 24.50 cents per share 284 315 E9,657
4 October 2016 Share placement @ 25 cents per share 417,253 104,313
1 November 2016 Share placement @& 24 cents per share 383,358 22,015
4 November 2016 Share purchase plan @ 26 cents per share 398,066 103,487
22 November 2016 Employes share plan grant 1,666 BET -
23 November 2016 Debt conversion share issue @ 24 cents/share 19,230,769 4,615,385
1 December 2016 Share placement & 26 cents per share 955,464 248421
3 January 2017 Share placement @ 24 cents per share 532,072 127 697
24 January 2017 Debt conversion share issue @ 23.50 cents/share 38,461,539 9,038,462
30 January 2017 Share placement (@ 23,50 cents per share 105,333 24,753
2 February 2017 Share placement @ 26 cents per share 200,000 52,000
Share issue costs . (370,756)
Balance at 30 June 2017 316,885,800 88,248,678
At 1 July 2017 - -
4 August 2017 Share placement @ 14 cents per share 43,000,000 6,020,000
T May 2018 Share placement @ 11 cents per share 55,000,000 6,050,000
27 June 2018 Share Buy Back (151,428) -
Share issue costs - (843,118)
Balance at 30 June 2018 414,734,372 99,475,560

Employee share plan shares

The number of fully paid ordinary shares disclosed in Note 16 includes the outstanding shares issued under the employee
share plans. At 30 June 2018 this amounted to 10,515,231 shares (2017: 10,666,659 shares) which have either not vested to
the employee or the employee has not repaid the non-recourse loan used to fund the share issue. Both these conditions must
be met in order for the employee to freely trade the shares,

Fully paid erdinary shares

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Parent entity in proportion to the number of
shares held. At shareholders’ meetings, each ordinary share is entitled to one vole when a poll is called, otherwise each
shareholder has one vote on a show of hands. The ordinary shares have no par value,
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17. RESERVES
Employee Share Option Reserve
Consolidated
2018 2017
% %
Resernve comprises the following:
Balance as at start of financial year 1.419.026 1,316,153
1,428,570 options vested - 102,873
Balance as at end of the financial year 1,419,026 1419026
Employee Share Plan Reserve
The employee share plan reserve records ilems recognised as expenses on the valuation of employee shares.
Consolidated
2018 2017
% 3
Resene comprises the following:
Balance as at start of financial year 2,729,089 1.927 281
2,285,712 ghares issuad and vested - 180,284
1,000,000 shares issued and vasied # 113,019
1,300,000 shares issued and vested - 313,318
1,666 66T shares issues and vesting = 100,294 185,186
Balance as at end of the financial year 2,820,383 2,728,080

{@) On 22 Novembor 2016, a total of 1,666,667 shares wore issued io Mr M. Young afler shaseholder approval was received and have been funded
by & mon-interest bearing. limited recoursa loan from the Company. The shares are subject o a variety of vesting conditions over a threa year
period, and expire on 22 Movember 2021. The Black Scholes valuation expense will be proportionafty allocated over the vesting penod.

As non-interest bearing Emited recourse loans were provided to purchase Plan shares in the Company and these loans are
secured against the same Plan shares, AASE 2 (share based payments) applies. On this basis, the loan amount is not
recognised in the financial staternents and instead an amount is expensed as a share based payment.

Employea Short-term Incentive Reserve

The employee sho-term incentive reserve records items recognised as expanses relating to contingently issuable shares for
employee shorl-lerm incentives.

Consolidated
2018 2017
5 5
Reserne comprises the following:
Balance as at start of fimancial year - -
2018 short term incentives 74.700 -
Balance as at end of the financial year 74,700 -

{8} On 31 Augist 2018 the Remuneration Gommittes and Board approved a 2018 short-lerm benefil of & fixed value of fulure tssue of shares o
kay mansgement parsonnel based on (heir Individual perfermance during the year, The issua of shanes in the fulure is subject o an addifional
sandce condition through fo 30 Juna 2018, unless the smployes is tarminated by the Company without cassa. The future issue of a portion of
ihe shares is 1o Directors and as a consequence |s aiso subject o shareholder approval.  The share-basad payments have been provisionally
expensed in accordanca with accounting standards over a bwo year vesting pariod, from commencemeant of the parformance period on 1 July
2017 to end ol the sarnvice condition on 30 June 2019,

Consolidated
2018 2017
% 5
4323109 4148115
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18. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
(a) Employee share option plan

The Company had an employee share option plan, which was also available to Directors (the issue of securities to Directors
requires shareholder approval), called the Vimy Resources Limited Employee Share Option Plan ("Flan”). This Plan was
replaced by the Vimy Employee Share Plan on 14 June 2013, however, some options remain cutstanding under the prior
employee option plan. No options wene issued during the year.

Set out below is a summary of options granted to employees under the Vimy Rescurces Limited Employee Option Plan:

Number Number Humber Number MNumber Number
Balance Granted Exercised Forfeited Balance Exercisable
Expiry at start during during during at end at end
Grant date date of year year year year of year of year
14 June 2013 14 June 2018 2,857,142 - - (2.857,142) - -
17 December 16 December 1.428 570 - - - 1,428 570 1,428,570
2014 2019
4,285,712 - - (2.857,142) 1,428,570 1,428,570
Weighted average exercise price $0.80 §0.80
Weighted average remaining contractual life 1.46 years  1.46 years

(b) Employee share plans

On 14 June 2013, the Company established an employee share plan, which is also available to Directors (the issue of securities
to Directors requires shareholder approval). The plan is called the 2012 Vimy Employee Share Plan.

On 18 Movember 2016, the Company established an employee share plan, which is also available to Directors (the issue of
securilies to Directors requires shareholder appraval). The plan is called the 2016 Vimy Employee Share Plan,

A summarny of the main terms and conditions of the Vimy Employee Share Plans can be found at Mote 5,

Mo new shares were issued under the Employee Share Plan durimg the current reporting period. Set out below is a summary
of shares granted to employees under the Plans:

Humber Humber Mumber Hurmber
Balance at start Issued during Forfeited during Balance at end

lssue date of year year year of year
14 June 2013 2,857,142 . - 2,857 142
5 Seplember 2014 1,557,138 - (71.428) 1,485,710
17 December 2014 2,285,712 - - 2,285,712
20 Movember 2015 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
3 June 2016 1,300,000 . (80,000) 1,220,000
22 Movember 2016 1,666,667 - - 1,666,667
10,666,659 - (151,428) 10,515,231

(2} Employee short-term incentive - contingently issuable shares

On 31 August 2018 the Remuneration Committee and Beoard approved a 2018 short-term benefit of a fixed value of future
issue of shares to key management personnel bagsed on their individual perfarmance during the year. This share issue is
subject ko an additional service condition through to 30 June 2019, unless the employee is terminated by the Company without
cause, A portion of the shares is issuable to Directors and as a consaquence is also subject to shareholder approval,

The value of contingently issuable shares on 31 August 2018 was $149,400 which relates to both the 2018 and 2019 financial
years, The share-based payments have been provisionally expensed in accordance with accounting standards over a two
year wasting period, resulting in the recognition of a 374,700 expense in 2018,
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(d) Expenses recognised in profit and loss

Total expenses anising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the year as part of employee benefit

expansa weara as follows:

Employes share options granted in 2015

Employee share plan shares granted in 2015
Employee share plan shares granted in 2016

Employee share plan shares granted in 2017

Employee short-term incentives for 2018

ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Accumulated losses at the beginning of the financial year
Met loss attributable to members of the Company
Accumulated losses at the end of the financial year

EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

(a)  Operating lease commitments

Mon-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the
financial staternents relating to office space

Payable - minimum lease payments
- not later than 12 months
- between 12 months and 5 vears

The Company leases the Ground Floor, 10 Richardson Street, West Perth,
Western Australia. The lease termn expires in October 2018, A cash backed
guarantee bond has been established for $190,506 in relation to the leass,
refer to Note 10.

() Expenditure commitments contracted for:

Exploration tenements

In order to maintain current rights of tenure to exploration tenaments,
the Group is required to meet the minimum expenditure requirements.
These obligations are not provided for in the financial statements:

- not later than 12 months
- between 12 months and 5 years

Caonsolidated
2018 2017
¥ $
- 102,875
- 180,282
- 426,338
100,294 195,186
74,700 -
174 994 904,681
Consolidated
2018 2017
$ ]
(87,768,945) (76,268, 788)
(9.545,741) {11,500,157)
(97,314,686) (87,768, 945)
Consolidated
2018 2m7
$ %
83732 248,757
- 83,732
83732 332,489
2,227.300 1.723,700
7,065,200 5,840, 800
9,292,500 8,564 500
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21. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Country of Percentage owned
inconporation 2ma 27
Parent snlity:
Wimy Resources Limited Australia
Subsidiaries of Vimy Resources Limfted:
Marmoo Mining Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100%
Vélo Resources Pty Lid (previously Camuce Pty Ltd) Australia 100% 100%
Viva Resources Pty Lid (previously Gunbamel Energy and
Minerals Ausiralia Pty Lid) Australia 100% 100%%
22. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS
Consolidated
2018 2017
% $
1. Audit services
Audit of financial reports and other audit work under the
Corporations Act 2001:
Grant Themion Audit Pty Ltd in 2017 {resigned 17 Novamber 2017} - 41417
KPMG in 2018 {appointed 17 Movember 2017} 40,300 -
2. Non-audit services
KPMG research and development tax incentive compliance and advisory 77,100 -
KPMG accounting advisory fees 14,350 -
KPMG taxation refurn preparation and advisory 17.850 -
KPMG general taxation advisory fees 21.781 =
Total auditer's remuneration 171,381 41,497
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23. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Consolidated
2018 7
$ $
(a) Reconciliation of Loss after tax to net cash outflow from
Operating Activities
Loss after income tax {9.545,741) (11.,500,157)
Adjustrnents for:
Depreciation expense 214,335 222 927
Share based payments expense 174,934 904 681
Fair value adjustment to embedded dernivative (22,237) 1,821
Gain on issue of shares - (1,246,153)
Exploration and evaluation expenses settled in shares - 474 T35
Financing expenses seliled in shares - 321,014
(9,178,649) (10,921,132)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
{Increase) / Decrease in frade and other receivables 1,742,351 (1,977 177)
(Imcrease) / Decrease in prepayments (15,481) 184 817
Increase / {Decrease) in trade and other payables (1,515,824) {444 557)
Increase / {Decrease) in provisions 213,692 187,063
Met cash outflow from operating aclivities {8,753,891) (12,970,980)

24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Contingent Liability - Royalty

In 2015 the Company entered into a royalty agreement with RCF V1. Marmnoo Mining Piy Ltd {'Mamoo"), wholly owned
subsidiary of Vimy, has agreed to pay a royalty to RCF VI of 1.15% on the gross proceeds received by Namoo from selling
mineral products extracted and recovered from the tanements that make up the Mulga Rock Project.

The Company has granted security to RCF VI for the royalty obligations, in the form of a mortgage over the mining tenaments.

26. PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION

Parent Entity
2018 2017
$ 5

Information relating to Vimy Resources Limited:

Current assets 7446 431 7,313,288
Tolal assels 8,311,244 7.615,268
Current liabilities B17 429 1,752,737
Total liabilities 898675 1,831,582
Total net assets 7412 569 5,783,686
Contributed equity 99,475 560 B8,248 678
Reserves 4,323,109 4,148,115
Accumulated losses (96,386,100) (86.,613,107)
Total equity 7.412 569 5,783,686
Loss of the parent entity (9,772.993) (11.273,404)
Total comprehensive loss of the parent entity (9.772,993) (11,273,404}
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Guarantees of the Parent:

On 1 July 2007, Vimy Resources Limited and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax
consolidation group under the Tax Consolidation Regime. Each entity in the Group will continue to recognise its own current
and deferred tax Eabilities, except for any deferred tax assets resulting from unused tax losses and tax credits, which are
immediately assumed by the Parent entity. The current tax liability of each Group entity will then subsequently be assumed by
the Parent enfity, The tax consolidated group entered into a tax sharing agreement whereby each company in the Group
contributes to the income tax payable in proportion to their contribution to profit before tax of the tax consolidated group.

Parent Entity
2018 207

% $
Commitments and contingent liabilities of the Parent
Expenditure commitments
Mon-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised n the
financial statements relating to office space
Fayable - minimum lease payments
- not later than 12 months 83,732 248,757
- between 12 months and 5 years - 83,732

83,732 332,489

26. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE
Since 30 June 2018 the following significant subsequent events have occurred:

. From 1 July 2018 the Company has reduced Non-Executive Director Board fees by 10% and modified Executive Team

coniracts to provide the Company with flexibility to respond to uranium markel conditions in the next six months while
maintaining core intellectual property.

«  On 17 July 2018, the Company announcad completion of the transfer of tenements relating to the Alligator River
Uranium Project in Arnhem Land, Northern Territory. The Company has made an assessment whether it had been
transferred significant nisk and rewards, had legal rights and contrel to tenure at 30 June 2018, and as such whether the
acquisition should be recognised at 30 June 2018. The Company concluded that the acquisition from Cameco Australia
Pty Lid was not completed until 17 July 2018 following transfer of tenements, and therefore the acquisition has been
disclosed as a subsequent event. The Company has acquired the project for a cash consideration of $6.5 million staged
aver 30 months and granted Cameco a conditional buy-back option. The first instalment of $1.5 million was paid in July
2018.

. On 20 July 2018, the Company issued 4,030,000 ordinary shares under the terms and conditions of the 2016 Vimy
Employes Share Plan as approved by shareholders on 18 November 2016. The shares are subject to vesting conditions
as well as repayment of a limited recourse loan provided by the Company (refer to the Remuneration Report for details
of the plan).

«  On 13 August 2018, the Company announced commencement of exploration drilling at the Alligatar River Praject to
extend known mineralisation at the Angularli deposit and confirm prospectivity at the Such Wow prospect.
27. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This mote provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements to the extent they have not already been disclosed in other notes above. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of Vimy
Resources Limited and ite subsidiarias.

(a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations Esued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. Vimy Resources Limited
is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements,

Compliance with [FRS

The consolidated financial statements of Vimy Resources Limited Group also comply with Intermational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
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Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-gale financial assets, and financial assels and liabilities at fair value.

Critical accounting estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards reguires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercize its judgement in the process of applying the Group's

accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Mote 1.

Functional and presentation curency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency and
are rounded to the nearest dollar.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following new standards and amendments to standards are mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning

1 July 2017
+  AASE 2015-1 Amendments fo Ausiralian Accounting Standards — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses

*  AASE 2016-2 Amendments fo Ausiralian Accounling Standards = Disclosure Initiative: Amendmenis fo AASE 107

*  AASE 2017-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Transfers of Investment Property, Annual
Improvements 2014-20186 Cyele and Other Amendrmants

«  AASE 2017-2 Amendments o Australian Accounling Standards - Further Annual Improvements 2014-201 6 Cycle

The adoption of the above new standards and amendments to standards had no impact on the amounts recognised and
disclosures in Vimy's financial statements.

New standards and inferpretalions nof yet adopled

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2018 reporting
periods. These standards and interpretations have not been early adopted. The Group's assessment of the impact of these
new standards and interpretations is set out below.

. AASB 9 Financial Instrumenis (effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018). AASB 9
addresses the clarification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities and introduces
new rules for hedge accounting. As Vimy is a project development company focussed on exploration and evaluation and
has no complex financial assets or financial iabilities, Vimy has determined that AASE 9 will have no matenal impact on
the way the Group accounts for or discloses its financial instrurnents.

*  AASB 15 Revenus from Coniracts with Customers (effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018). AASB 15 introduces new framework for accounting for revenue and will raplace AASE 118 Revenue and AASE
111 Construction Confracts. The new standard is based on the panciple that revenue is recognised when confrol over
goods and services transfers to a customer, therefore the notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and
renwards. As the Company is focussed on exploration and evaluation and project development, Vimy has a reasonable
expectation based on an initial assessment that there will be no material impact of the new standard on the Group's
financial statements,

*  AASE 16 Leases (effective for annual reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). AASE 16 introduces new
framework for accounting for leases and will replace AASE 117 Leases. The new standard will primarily affect the
accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of aimost all leases on the Statement of Financial Position.

The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases and requires recognition of an
asset (the right to use the eased item) and a fimancial iability to pay rentals for almeost all lease contracts. Vimy expects
that AASE 16 will result in an increase in assets and liabilities as fewer leases will be expensed as payments are made.
It is alzo expected that depreciation expense will increase related to the additional assets, and cash flow from operating
activities will increase as lease payments will be recorded as financing outflows in the cash flow statement. As the main
lease the Company has entered into relates to rental of a small amount of corporate and project office space for a short
penod of time, it is not expected that AASE 16 will have a material impact on the Group's financial statemenits.
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(b) Principles of consolidation

The Group financial statements consalidate those of the Parent Company and all of its subsidiaries as of 30 June 2018,
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities} over which the Group has contrel. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, varable returns from its involvement with the entity, and has the ability to affect those
returns throwgh its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date an which control
is transfermad to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases,

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on fransactions batween group companies are eliminated,
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

() Segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Board of Directors.

(d) Revenue and income recognition

Revenue and income are recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the extent
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and income can be reliably measured.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue and income is recognised:

Interest revenue

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial assel and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate,

RE&D Tax Incentive grant income

Any grant received for efigible research and development tax incentive income is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as a consaquence of the accounting policy o expense exploration and
evaluation costs as incurred. The grant income is only recognised when it can be measured refiably which the Group has
defined as the point of submitting the elaim for the grant income,

(e) Income tax

The ncome tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the cumrent penod's taxable income based on the national income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities atiributable to temparary differences and
unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assels
are recovered, or liabilities are settled, bazed on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for each
jurisdiction, The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to
measure the deferred tax asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the camying amount and tax bases of
investments in controlled entities whera the Parent entity is able to contral the timing of the reversal of the tempaorary
differances and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foresesable future.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity.
ifi Leases

Operaling lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis
over the |ease term,

(g) Impairment of assels

At each reporting date, the entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impaimment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate
cash flows that are independent from other assets, the enlity estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markel assessments
af the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have naot been
adjusted.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions, together with other
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(ij Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less a provision for impairment,
() Financial instruments
i Non-derfvative financial assets
Loans and recehvables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with ficed or determinable payments that are not gquoted in an active
market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent o initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables.
i Non-derivative financial Nabilities
The Group dassifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such financial

liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly atributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these financial liabilites are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methad.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
Other financial liabilities comprise loans, borrowings, trade and other payables,
(k) Plant and equipment

Flant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Depreciation is calculated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Plant and equipment — 2 to 15 years
The assels’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset's carrying amount is wiitten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carmying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
statement of comprehensive income.

(I} Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilties for goods and services provided to the Group prios to the end of financial year which are
unpaid, The amounis are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

(m) Loans and borrowings

Loans and berrowings are initially recognised al fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Loans and borrawings are
subsequently measured at amortised costs. Loans and bormowings are derecognised from the Statement of Financial Position
‘when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired,

(n) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the present
abligation at the end of the reporting period, The discount rate usad to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an expense,

(o) Rehabilitation and site restoration

The Group is required fo rehabilitale mine sites, to the extent that any environmental disturbance has occurred, to a condition
acceplable to the relevant autharities. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the
expenditura required to settle the prasent obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific {o the
liability. The increase in the provision due Lo the passage of time is recognised as an expense.

(p) Employee benefits
Employee entitlermant

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendening services up to the reporting date.
These benefits include wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave, Liabilities arsing in respect of wages and
salaries, annual leave and long service leave and any other benefits expected to be settled wholly within twelve manths of the:
reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts based on remuneration rates which are expected to be paid when the
liability is sattled. All other employee benefit liabilties are measured at the presant value of the estimated future cash cutflow
o be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. In determining the present value of future
cash outflows, the market yield as at the reporting date on high quality corparate bonds, which have terms to maturity
approximaling the terms of the related liabilities, are used.

Shara-based paymenis

The Company provides staff with Employee Share Plans, whereby eligible participants are granted shares in the Company
funded by a limited recourse loan from the Company. The limited recourse loans are recorded within equity and not as a
receivable or financial asset to be recovered from the Company. Share-based compensation benefits may be provided fo
employees and Directors via both the 2013 and 2016 Vimy Employes Share Flans.

The Group measures the cost of equity-setiled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by using the Black-Scholes formula,

(g) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, unless the GST incuwrred is not recoverable from
the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition the asset or as par of the expense,

Receivables and payables are staled inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation autherity is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of
Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis, The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flow.

(r} Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expendifure that has been acquired in a business combination or asset acquisition and associated
fransaction costs are capitalised under the scope of AASE 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources. All other
exploration and evaluation expenditure is expensed in the year it is incurred.

Pre-exploration and evaluation expenditure, where the Group does not hold legal title to a tenement or a license to explore, is
expensed in the year it is incurred,

Exploration and evaluation expendifure is allocated separalely (o specific areas of inlerest. Each area of interest is limited to a
size related to a known or probable mineral resource capable of supporting a mining operation. Such expenditure comprises
direct exploration and evaluation costs incurred, together with an appropriate portion of directly related overhead expenditure.

Exploration and evaluation assets are only continued to be recognised if the rights to the area are current and either:

(i} the exploration and evaluation expendilures are expected to be recouped through successful development and exploration
of the area of interest or by its sale; or

{ii) exploration and evaluation activities have not at the reporting date reached a stage which pemits a reasonable
assessment of the existence of economically recoverable resources, and active operations are continuing.
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Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment if facts and circumstances suggest that the camying amount of
an exploration and evaluation asset may exceed ils recoverable amount. For the purposes of impairment testing, exploration
and evaluation assets are allocated to cash generaling units (CGU's) to which the exploration activity relates. The CGU shall
nat be larger than the area of interest.

In the event that an area of interest is abandoned or if the Directors consider the exploration and evaluation assets atiributable
to thie area of intarest to be of reduced value, the exploration and evaluation assets are impaired in the period in which the
assessment is made. Each area of interest is reviewed at each reporting period and accumulated costs are written off to the
extent that they will not be recoverable in future.

When a decision to proceed to development is made for an area of interest, exploration and evaluation assets attributable to
that area of interest are first tested for impairment and then reclassified to mine propery assets within property, plant and
equipment.
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30 JUNE 2018

% In the opinion of the Directors of Vimy Resources Limited:

{a) the consolidated financial statements and notes of Vimy Resources Limited are in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the consolidated enfity's financial posifion as at 30 June 2018 and of its
performance for the financial year ended on thal date; and

il. complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001, and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements.

{b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that Vimy Resources Limited will be able to pay its debts as and whean they
become due and payable; and

& The Directors have been given the declarations by tha chiaf executive officer and chief financial officer requirad by Section
2954 of the Corpovations Act 2007,

. The consolidated financial staternents comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

This declarafion is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

M |

Michael Young
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Dated 18 Seplember 2018
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ndependent Auditors Report

To the shareholders of Vimy Resources Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Report

We have audited the Financial Report of The Financial Report comprises:
Vimy Resources Limited (the Company). . . »
* Consolidated statement of financial position
In our opinion, the accompanying Financial as at 30 June 2018
Report of the Company is in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001, including:  ® Consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, Consolidated

* giving a true and fair view of the statement of changes in equity, and
Group's financial position as at 30 June Consolidated statement of cash flows for
2018 and of its financial performance the year then ended

far the year ended an that date; and ,
e Motes including a summary of significant

e complying with Australian Accounting accounting policies
Standards and the Corporations .
Reagulations 2001. o Directors’ Declaration.

The Group consists of the Company and the
entities it controlled at the year-end or from time
to time during the financial year.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Corporations Act 2007 and the
ethical requirements of the Accounting Frofessional and Ethical Standards Board's AFES 110
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code,

KPMG, an Australion parinorship and @ membser firm of the KPMG Limbility krnited by m schisms approved under
network of ndependen| member fimes alffiated wilh KPMG Frofessional Slandards Legeslaton,
Intesmationad Cooperairve (KPMG intemabional™), @ Swiss enbity



Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 1{bl, “Going Concern” in the financial report. The conditions
disclosed in Mote 1(b) indicate a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's akility to continue as a going concern and, therefore, whether it will realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business, and at the amounts stated
in the financial report, Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

In concluding there is a matenal uncertainty related 1o going concern we evaluated the extent
of uncertainty regarding events or conditions casting significant doubt in the Group’s
assessment of going concern. Our approach 1o this involved:

s Evaluating the feasibility, quantum and timing of the Group's plans to raise additional
sharehplder funds to address going concern;

» Assessing the Group's cash flow forecasts for incorporation of the Group's operations and
plans to address going concern, in particular in light of the history of loss making
operations; and

s Determining the completeness of the Group’s going concern disclosuras for the principle
matters casting significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, the
Group's plans to address these matters, and the material uncertainty.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Report of the current year.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Report as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going concem section,
we have determined the matter described below to be the Key Audit Matter.



Timing of the acquisition of the Alligator River Uranium Project (A$6,500,000)

Refer to Note 26 to the Financial Report

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

The key audit matter

The timing of the acquisition of the Alligator River =~ Our procedures included;
Uranium Project for $6.5 million is a key audit

matter due to: Reading the Sale and Purchase Agreement

and associated agreerments related to the
acquisition to understand the key terms,
the nature of the transaction and the
conditions precedeant to finalise the
acquisiton;

s the size and nature of the transaction having
a pervasive impact on the Group's financial
statements; and

s the level of judgement used by the Group to
determine the date of the acquisition. The o Inspected the comespondence between

determination of the acquisition date as
either prior to 30 June 2018 (the financial
yvear-end), or as subsequent to year-end,
significantly impacts the recognition of

the Company, the parties to the Sale and
Purchase Agreement and regulatary
agencies to assess the status of the
necessary approvals precedent to the sale

at 30 June 2018;

o Involving our senior audit tearm members to
assess the Group's evaluation of the
acquisition date against the critena in the
accounting standards. We focused on the
Group's evaluation of the transfer of risks
and rewards, control and legal rights 1o
tenure; and

amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and the related
disclosures.

We focused on assessing the Group's
documentation of the status of the conditions
precedent in the Sale and Purchase Agreement
to finalise the acquisition against our
interpretation of the criteria in the accounting
standards. This required significant audit effort
and greater involvement of senior team members
in gathering evidence on the status of conditions
precedent to the sale.

s Assessing the Group's subsequent event
disclosures in relation to the acquisition
against our understanding of the acquisition
and the requirements of the accounting
standards.

Other Information

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in Vimy Resources Limited's annual
reporting which is provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor's Report. The
Directors are responsible for the Other Information,

The Dther Information we obtained prior to the date of this Auditor's Report was the Director's
Report. The Chairman's Letter, CEQ's Review of Activities, Outlook for 2019, Operations
Review, Mineral Resource and Ore Reserve statemeant, Additional Information and Corporate
Governance Statement are expecled to be made available to us after the date of the Auditor's
Report.

Cur opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we
do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the
exception of the Remuneration Report and our related assurance opinion,



KPMG

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other
Infarmation. In doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
matarially misstated.

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, and based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we
obtained prior to the date of this Auditor's Report we have nothing to report

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The Directors are responsible for:

e preparing the Financial Report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001

¢ implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Repart that
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
Brror

s assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the
going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
afternative but to do so,

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report

Our objective is:

* 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

® toissue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion,

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Austrafian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error, Thay are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this Financial Report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the
Auvditing and Assurance Standards Board wehsite at;

http:/hwww.auasb.gov.au/auditors responsibilities/arl.pdf. This description forms part of our
Auditor's Report.
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Report on the Remuneration Report

Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of
Vimy Resources Limited for the year ended
30 June 2018, complies with Section 3004
of the Corporations Act 2001.

I Ga

KPMG

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors of the Company are responsible
for the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with
Section 3004 of the Corporations Act 2001,

Our responsibilities

We have audited the Remuneration Report
included in pages 29 to 38 of the Directors’
report for the year ended 30 June 2018,

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Remuneration Report, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standard.

Ay, 4

Derek Meates
Partner

Perth

18 September 2018



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

AS AT 15 OCTOBER 2018
Capital structure
The capital structure of the Company at the date of this report was:
Ordinary shares Unlisted options
416,680,731 18,857,134

Distribution of listed ordinary fully paid shares

Size of holding Number of shareholders Mumber of ordinary shares
1 - 1,000 445 180,492
1,001 = 5,000 4485 1,311,790
5,001 = 10,000 247 1,862,120
10,001 - 100,000 789 34,730,454
100001 - andover 384 37,515,875
2,360 416,680,731

Thi number of sharsholders holding less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares was 989,

Twenty largest shareholders of listed ordinary shares
Name

Ordinary shares held % of total

1 Merill Lynch (Australia) Nominees Pty Limited 67476612 16.19%
2 Forest Family Investments Pty Lid 57,142 8BSV 13.71%
3 ENP Paribas Nominees Pty Lid 26,959,638 6.47%
4 Surmnico (WA) Pty Ltd 26,734 508 6.42%
5 Mr Pater Sarantzouklis 20,000,000 4.80%
& Lexband Pty Lid 10,000,000 2.40%
7 FF Okram Pty Ltd 7692307 1.85%
: ENP Paribas Nominees Pty Lid 6,782,986 1.63%
8 Mr Michael E. Fewster and Mrs Suzanne T. Fewster 5,138,571 1:23%
10 JH Mominees Australia Pty Ltd 4,800,000 1.1B%
11 Eaglefield Holdings Pty Lid 3545714 0.85%
12 HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 3525293 0.85%
13 Rookharp Investments Pty Limited 3,300,000 0.79%
14 Safari Capital Pty Ltd 3,109,813 0.75%
15 Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 3,059,855 0.73%
16 Mr Jamie Pherous 2,347 557 0.56%
17 Fourth Nominees Pty Limited 2,276,146 0.55%:
18 Egmeont Pty Lid 2,000,000 0.48%
19 ABN Amro Cleaning Sydney Mominees Pty Ltd 1.993.505 0.48%
20 Basapa Pty Ltd 1,850,000 0.44%

259,835,362 62.36%

Voting rights of ordinary shares (ASX Code: VMY)

At a general meeting, on a show of hands, every ordinary shareholder present in person or by proxy has one vole, On the taking of
a poll, every ordinary shareholder present in parson or by proxy, and whose shares are fully paid, has one vote for each of his or her
shares,
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

AS AT 15 OCTOBER 2018

Distribution of all unlisted employee option plan holders:

Size of holding Number of option holders Number of optlons
100,001 -  and over 2 1,428,570
2 1,428,670

Holders of 20% or more of the securities listed above:
Michael C. Young and J. T. Young ATF the MJE Trust 714,285 options
Julian R. Tapp 714,285 options

Distribution of unlisted option holders (expiring on 16 December 2018, exercisable at $1.54 per share).

Size of holding Number of option holders Number of options
100,001 -  andover ] 8,714,281
-] 8,714,281

Haldars of 20% or more of the secunities isted above:
Mational Mominees Limited 3,290,235 options
Macquarie Bank Limited 4,292 751 options

Distribution of unlisted option holders (expiring on 16 December 2018, exercisable at 70 cents per share):

Size of holding Number of option holders Number of options
100,001 - and ocver [ 8,714,283
[] 8,714,283

Holders of 20% or more of the secunties listed above:

National Mominees Limited 3,242,318 options
Macquarie Bank Limited 4,230,236 options
Unlisted eptions

Until exercised, unlisted options confer no voting rights and no nghts to subscribe for new securiies in the Company. They do not
entitle the holder to a dividend, or to participate in a winding up of the Company. The unlisted oplions are a separate class of
security that may be converted into the Company’s shares on a one-for-ong basis once they are exercised.

Substantial shareholders

Name Ordinary shares held % of total
1 Resource Capital Fund VI LP 67,476,612 16.19%
2 Fomrest Family Investments Pty Ltd a7,142 857 13.71%
3 Acom Capital Limited 35,941,085 B.63%
4 Michael Edward Fewster 35418793 8.50%

On-market buy back
There is no current on-market buy back of the Company’s shares in place.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

AS AT 15 OCTOBER 2018

Investor Relations

Shareholders and investors seeking information on the Company should reference the Australian Securities Exchange website
asx.com.au and search announcements under the Company's ASX symbal WIMY , or contact the Chief Executive Officer
or Company Secretary at:

Vimy Resources Limited
Ground Floor

10 Richardzon Street
West Perth WA 6005

Telephone: +61 8 5389 2700

Facsimile: +61 8 9389 2722

Email: infoE@vimyresources. com.au
Website: WAV Vi YTeSoUrces, com.au
Shareholder enquiries

Enquiries relating to shareholding, tax file number and notification of change of address should be directed to:

Computershare Investor Services Py Limited
Lewvel 11, 172 St Georges Temace
Perth WA €000

Australia
Telephone: 1300 850 505 (wathin Australia)

+61 3 8415 4000 (outside Australia)
Facsimile: +61 3 3473 2500
Email; wwav.investarcentre com/contact
Website: wwaw.computershare com
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

STATEMENT

Vimy Resources Limited ('Company’) has adopted systems of control and accountability as the basis for the administration of
corporate governance. Some of these policies and procedures are summarised in this statement. Commensurate with the spirit of
the ASX Corporate Governance Council's Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations Third Edition (*Principles and
Recommendations®), the Company has followed each recommendation where the Board has considered the recommendation to be
an appropriate benchmark for its corporate governance practices. Where the Company's corporate governance practices follow a
recommendation, the Board has made appropriate statements reporting on the adoption of the recommendation. Where, after due
consideration, the Company's corporate governance practices depart from a recommendation, the Board has offered full disclosure
and reason for the adoption of its own practice, in compliance with the "if not, why not® regime.

This statement is curment as at 5 October 2018.

DISCLOSURE - PRINCIPLES AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The Cempany reports below on how it has followed (or ctherwize deparied from) each of the Principles and Recommendations
during the 2018 financial year ('Reporting Penad').

Principle 1 — Lay solid foundations for management and oversight

A listed enlity should establish and disclose the respective roles and responsibilities of Board and management and how their
performance is monitored and evaluated.

Recommendation 1.1:

A listed entity should disclose:

(a) the respective roles and responsibilities of Board and management; and

(b) those matters expressly reserved to the Board and those delegated to management.

Disclasure:

The Company has established functions reserved to the Board and has set out these functions in its Board Charter.

A copy of the Company's Board Charter is made available on the Company's website.

The Board is collectively responsible for promoling the success of the Company through its key funclions of oversesing the
management of the Company, praviding overall corporate govermance of the Company, menitoring the financial performance of the
Company, engaging appropriate management commensurate with the Company’s structure and objectives, involvement in the
development of corporate strategy and performance cbjectives and reviewing, ratifying and monitoring systems of risk management
and intemnal control, codes of conduct and legal compliance.

The Company has established the functions delegated to semior executives and has set out these functions in its Board Charter.
Senior executives are responsible for supporting the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director and assisting the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer in implementing the running of the general operations and financial business of the Company,
in accordance with the delegated authority of the Board.

Senior executives are responsible for reporting all matters which fall within the Company's materiality thresholds at first instance
to the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer or, if the matter concerns the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer,
then directly to the Chaimman of the Board.

Recommendation 1.2:

A listed entity should:

(a) undertake appropriate checks before appainting a person, or putting forward to secunty holders a candidate for election, as a
Director; and

(b) provide secunty holders with all matenal information in its possession relevant to a decision on whether or not to elect
aor re-elect a Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Disclosure:

When the Board determines that changes are required to the Board or indeed, if a Director resigns from the Board, in determining
candidates for the Board, the Board will follow a prescribed procedurs wheraby it considers the balance of independent Directors
on the Board as well as the skills and qualifications of potential candidates that will best enhance the Board's effectiveness.

The Board recognises that Board renewal is critical 1o performance and the impact of Board tenure on succession planning,
Directors are rotated on the basis of: “At each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the whole number nearest one-third, shall retire from office and based on that calculation
the Directors to retire at an annual general meeting are those who have been longest in office since their last election. A refirfing
Director is eligible for re-election. Re-appointment of Directors is not automatic.”

The Company Policy and Procedure for the Selection and (Re)Appointrnent of Directors requires that shareholders shall be
informed of the names of candidates submitted for election as Directors at a general meeting of shareholders. In order to enable
sharehalders to make an informed decision regarding the election, the following information shall be supplied to shareholders:

+  hbiographical details (including competencies and qualifications and information sufficient to enable an assessment of the
independence of the candidate);

«  details of material business relationships between the candidate and the Company, and the candidate and Directors of the
Company,

. Diractorships held:

+  the term of office currently served by any Directors subject to re-election; and

* any other particulars required by law.

A copy of the Company’s Policy and Procadura for the Selection and {Re)/Appointment of Directors is made available on the
Company's website.

Recommendation 1.3:

A listed entity should have a written agreement with each Director and senior executive setting out the terms of their appointment.

Disclosura:

Remuneration and other terms of employment for key management personnel are formalised in service agreements which are
disclosed in the Remuneration Report which forms part of the Directors’ Report. Mon-Executive Directors sign a formal letter of
appointment.

Recommendation 1.4:

The company secretary of a listed entity should be accountable directly to the Board, through the Chairman, on all matters to do
with the proper functioning of the Board.

Diselosura:
The Company Secratary fulfils other management responsibilities in addition to company secratarial duties. The formal reporting
line of the Company Secretary is to the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer. For any matter relevant to the company

secretarial duties or conduct of the Board, the Company Secretary has an indirect reporting line, and is accountable, to the
Chairman of the Board.

Recommaendation 1.6:

A listed enlity should:

(a) have a dversity policy which includes requirements for the Board or a relevant committee of the Board to set measurable
objectives for achieving gender diversity and to assess annually both the objectives and the entity's progress in achieving them;

(b} disclose that policy or a summary of it; and

(c) disclose as at the end of each reporting pernod the measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity set by the Board or a
relevant commitiee of the Board in accordance with the entity's diversity policy and its progress towards achieving them and either:

o the respective proportions of men and women on the Board, in senior executive positions and across the whole
organisation (including how the entity has defined “senior executive” for these purposes); or

o if the enfity is a “relevant employer” under the Workplace Gender Equality Act, the entity’s most recent *gender equality
indicators”, as defined in and published under that Act.
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Notiffcation of depariure:
The Company does not have a diversity policy.

Explanafion for departure;

The Company has not established a formal diversity policy and has nol developed measurable objectives for achieving gender
diversity at this point in time due to the relatively small size of the Company and the limited scope of work activites. The Company
is committed to ensuring a diverse mix of skills and talent exists amongst its Directors, officers and employees to enhance the
Company’s performance.

At 30 June 2018, the Board was comprised of seven members with two women; being the Non-Executive Chairman The Hon.
Cheryl Edwardes AM and Non-Executive Director Dr Vanessa Guthrie the nominated representative of Resource Capital Funds VI
LP. The Company had twenty employess at 30 June 2018, with seven women which represented 35% of the total employees,
There are no women in senior executive roles which have been defined as the Executive Directors and key management personnel
of the Company as disclozed in the Remuneration Report which forms part of the Directors’ Report.

Recommendation 1.8:

A listed enlity should:

(a) have and disclose a process for periodically evaluating the performance of the Board, its committees and individual Directors;
and

(b} discloss, in relation to each reporting penod, whether a performance evaluation was undertaken in the reporting penod in
accordance with that process.
Disclosure:

The Company has formalised a policy relating to the Process for Performance Evaluation, and a copy is made available on the
Company's website.

The assessment process used by the Board requires each Director to complete a questionnaire relating to the role, composition,
procedures, practices and behaviour of the Board and its members. Senior executives having most direct contact with the Board
may also be invited to complete similar questionnaires. Responses to the guestionnaires are confidential and provided direct to the
Company Secratary with the results individually and in aggregate then communicated to the Chairman of the Boeard,

During the Reporting Period, a formal evaluation of the Board did not take place. The composition of the Board was last reviewed
at the time of appointing Dr Vanessa Guthrie as a Non-Executive Director on & October 2017,
Recommendation 1.7:
A listed entity should:
{a) have and disclose a process for perodically evaluating the performance of its senior executives; and
{b) disclose, in relation o each reporting penod, whether a performance evaluation was undertaken in the repording period
in accordance with that process.
Disclosure:
The performance of all senior executives is reviewead at least annually. The Board evaluates the performance of senior executives

having regard to such things as: the responsibilities of the execulive; perfformance against budget and goals that have been set;
any communicated key performance indicators; and qualitative as well as quantitative measures,

Mo senior executive is involved with their own evaluation, and the Board evaluates such parties without such parties being present.
An evaluation of senior executives was undertaken during the 2018 financial year in accordance with this process.

The Cempany’s policy on remuneration is contained in the Remuneration Report which forms part of the Directors’ Report.
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Principle 2 = Structure the Board to add value
:r:;“hl?d ';:w should have a Board of an appropriate size, composition, skills and commitment to enable it o discharge its duties
Recommendation 2.1:
The Board of a listed entity shoukd:
(a) have a nomination committes which;
o has atleast three members, a majonty of whom are independent Directors; and
o s chaired by an independent Direclor,
and disclose:

o the charter of the commitiee;

o the members of the committee; and

o as at the end of each reporting period, the number of imes the committee met throughout the period and the individual
atlendances of the members at those meelings; or

(b) il it does not have a nomination committee, disclose thal fact and the processes it employs 1o address Board succession
issues and lo ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance of skills, knowledge, expenience, independence and diversity
to enable it to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively.

Notification of deparfure:
The Board has not established a Momination Committes.

Explanation for departure:

The full Board assumes the role of the Nomination Committes:

A separate Nomination Committea has not been farmed due io the relatively small size and structure of the Board. The Board
considers thalt at this stage no efficiencies or other benefits would be gained by establishing a separate Nominaton Commitiee.

The Board discusses nomination-related matters on an ongoing basis, as required. When considering matters of nomination, the
Baoard functions in accordance with its Nomination Committee Charter. llems that are usually required to be discussed by a
Momination Committee are marked as separate agenda items at Board meetings when required. The Board deals with any conflicts
of interest that may secur when convening in the capacity of Nomination Committee by ensuring the Director with conflicting
interests is not party to the relevant discussions.

A copy of the Company’s Nomination Committes Charter s made available on the Company’s website,

Recommendation 2.2:

A listed entity should have and disclose a Board skills mairix setting out the mix of skills and diversity that the Board cumently has
or is looking lo achieve in its membership,

Disclosure:

During the 2018 financial year the Board completed a Board skills matrix to mare formally disclose the mix of skills and diversity
of the current Board. The matrix focussed on professional skills, industry skills, personal attributes, diversity and non-skills based
criteria.

The professional skills assassed were sirategy. financial parformance, rsk and compliance oversight, corporate govermance,
infarmation technology strategy and governance, executive management, and commercial expearience.

The industry skills assessed were technical, management, project, permitiing and appravals, legal, finance and funding, uranium
industry and marketing, investor and community relations.

The personal atiribules that all directors on the Company's Board are expected to possess are inlegrity (ethics), effective listener
and communicator, constructive questioner, confributor and team player, commitment, influencer and negotiator, critical and
innovative thinker, and |eader,

The non-skills based critena assessed were previous Board experience and conflicts of interest.
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A detailed analysis of individual Director skills and experience confirmed that the Board currently has the appropriate level of
expenence and skills necessary to meet its responsibilities.

A profile of each Director containing their skills, experience, experise and term of office is set out in the Directors’ Report.

Recommendation 2.3:
A listed enlity should disclose:
(a) the names of the Directors considered by the Board to be independent Directors;

{b) if & Director has an interest, position, association or relationship of the type descrbed in Box 2.3 of the Principles and
Recommendations, but the Board is of the opinion that it does not compromise the independence of the Director; the nature
of the interest, position, association or relationship in question and an explanation of why the Board is of that opinicn; and

{g) the length of service of each Director,
Disclosure:

The Company has formalised a policy relating to Assessing the Independence of Directors, and a copy is made available on the
Company's websita.

For the reporting period the Board consisted of seven members with Dr Vanessa Guthrie appointed on 6 October 2017, The
Company has three independent Directors, being The Hon. Cheryl Edwardes AM, Mr David Comell, and Mr Andrew Haslam.

These Directors are independant as they are non-executive Directors who are not mambers of management and they are free of
any material business or other relationship that could materially interfere with, or could reasonably be perceived to materially
interfere with, the independent exercise of their judgement.

The Director's interest, position, association or relationship and length of service is set out in the Directors’ Report.

Recommendation 2.4;
A majonty of the Board of a listed entity should be independent Directors.
Notification of deparfure;

The Company did not have a majority of independent Directors, with anly three on a Board consisting of seven members since
Dr Vanesza Guthrie was appointed on 6 October 2017,

Explanalion for depariure:

The Board considers that the composition of the Board is adequate for the Company’s current size and operations, and includes an
appropriate mix of skills and expertise, relevant to the Company's business.

Recommendation 2.56:

The chair of the Board of a isted entity should be an independent Director and, in particular, should not be the same person as the
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the entity,

Disclosure:

The Hon. Cheryl Edwardes AM is the independent Mon-Executive Chairman and Mr Michael Young is the Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Recommendation 2.6:

A listed enlity should have a program for inducling new Directors and provide appropriate professional development opportunities
for Directors to develop and maintain the skills and knowledge needed to perform their role as Directors effectively.

Disclosure:

The formal letier of appointment and induction pack provided to Directors contains sufficient information to allow the new Director
to gain an understanding of:

- the rights, duties and responsibilities of Directors;
. the role of Board Committees;
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+  the roles and responsibilities of the senior executives; and
= the Company's financial, strategic, and operational risk management pasition.
Mew Directors undartake an induction program which comprises:

»  aninformation pack which includes a copy of the Company's constittion; Board and Committaa chartars, most recent annual
report; most recent monthly performance report the Company's strategic plan; organisational chart; deed of access, insurance
and indemnity and details of the Company's Director and officers’ insurance policy; and a copy of the register of the
Company's mast significant risks,

. a program of meetings with members of the Company’s senior executives; and
& visids to the Company’s projects.

The Company actively encourages Directors to participate in continuing professional education opporunities to update and enhance
their relevant skills and knowledge.

Principle 3 = Act ethically and respansibly

A listed entity should act ethically and responsibly,

Recommendation 3.1:

A listed entity should:

{a} have a code of conduct for its Direciors, senior executives and employees; and

(b} disclose that code or a summary of it.

Disclosure;

The Company has established a Code of Conduct as to the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Company’s integrity,

practices necessary to take into acsount their legal obligations and the expectations of their stakeholders and responsibility and
accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports of unethical practices.

A summary of the Company's Cede of Conduct is made available on the Company's websile.

Principle 4 — Safeguard integrity in financial reporting
Recommendation 4.1:
The Board of a listed entity should:

{a}) have an audit committee which:
o has at least three members, all of whom are non-executive Directors and a majornity of whom are independent Directors;

and
o & chaired by an independeni Direcior, whe is not the Chairman of the Board,
and disclose:

o fhecharter of the commitiee;
& the relevant qualifications and expenence of the members of the committee; and

o inrelation 1o aach reporing period, the number of times the commiftee met throughout the period and the individual
atiendances of the members at those meefings; or

(b} if it does not have an audit committee, disclose that fact and the processes it employs that independently verify and safeguard
the Integrity of its corporate reporting, including the processes for the appointment and remaval of the extarnal auditor and the
rotation of the awdit engagement partner.

Disclosure:
The Company has an Audit and Risk Committea,

For the reporting period, Mr David Cornell was the independent Chaiman of the Audit and Risk Committee.

During the reporting period the Audit and Risk Committee had five members = Mr David Comedl, The Hon. Cheryl Edwardes AM,
Mr Malcolm James, Mr Andrew Haslam and Dr Vanessa Guthrie was appointed on 6 October 2017, Of these members three are
considerad 1o be indepandent — Mr David Comell, The Hon, Cheryl Edwardes AM and Mr Andrew Haslam, which represents a
majarity of the committes.

The Audit and Risk Committee Charter is made available on the Company's website.
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The number of Audit and Risk Committee meetings held during the 2018 financial year and the qualifications of the Directors are
disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

Recommendation 4.2:

The Board of a listed enlity should, before it approves the entity’s financial statements for a financial period, receive from its
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Cfficer a declaration that, in their opinion, the financial records of
the entity have been properly maintained and that the financial statements comply with the appropriate accounting standards and
give a true and fair view of the financial pesition and performance of the enlity and that this opinion has been formed on the basis of
a sound system of risk management and intemal control which is operating effectively.

Disclosure:

The Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have provided the declaration to the Board in

accordance with section 285A of the Corporations Act 2001,

This declaration is thal:

. the financial records of Vimy Resources Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 have been properly maintained in
accordance with section 286 of the Australian Corporations Act 2007; and

#  fthe financial statements, and the notes referred to in paragraph 295(3)(b) of the Australian Corporations Act 2001, for the
financial year ended 30 June 2018 comply with the accounting standards; and

. the financial statements and notes for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 give a frue and fair view (secfion 297 of the
Australian Corporations Act 2001}, and

«  any other matters that are prescrbed by the regulations in relation to the financial statements and the notes for the financial
year ended 30 June 2018 are satished.

The consalidated financial statements comply with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards.

Recommendation 4.3:

A listed entity that has an Annual General Meeting ("AGM") should ensure that its external auditor attends its AGM and is available
to answer questions from securily holders refevant to the audit

Disclosure:

The external auditor attends the Company’s AGM, Shareholders may submit written questions to the auditor to be considerad at the
meeting in refation to the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the Independent Audit Report by providing the
questions to the Company at least five business days before the day of the meeting, Shareholders are also given a reasonable

opportunity at the meeting to ask the auditor questions relevant fo the conduct of the audit, the Independent Audit Report, the
accounting policies adopted by the Company and the independence of the auditor.

ncipl y — IViaKe time d balanced disclosLure

A listed enfity should make timely and balanced disclosure of all matters conceming it that 8 reasonable person would expect to
have a matenal effect on the price or value of its securities.

Recommendation §.1:

Companies should establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure requirements and to
ensure accountability at a senior execufive level for that compliance and disclose those policies or a summary of those policies.

Disclosure;
The Company has formalised policies relating to ASX Listing Rule Compliance and Compliance Procedures, and a summary of both
policies is made available on the Company's website.

The written policies are designed fo ensure compliance with ASX Lisling Rule disclosure and accountability at a senior executive
level for that compliance.
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At B s il W bk AF Enirii Baldors
INGIRIE © WESPECT NE nahts of security helders

A listed entity should respect the rghts of its security helders by providing them with appropriate information and facilities Lo allow
them to exercise those rights effectively.

Recommendation 6.1:
A listed entity should provide information about itself and its governance to investors via its website.

Disclosure:

The Company has formalised a policy relating ta Shareholder Communication, and a copy is made available on the Company’s
website.

The Company has a websile “vimyresounces com.au” providing information about itseif and its governancea to investors.

Recommendation 6.2:

A listed entity should design and implement an investor relations program to facilitate effective two way communication with
investors.

The Shareholder Communication policy includes promotion of effective communication with investors and encourages shareholder
participation at general meatings,

Recommendation 6.3:

A lisled entity should disclose the policies and processes it has n place to facilitate and encourage paricipation at meetings of
saclrity holders,

Disclosure:

Metices of meating sent to the Company’s shareholders comply with the ASX Listing Rules. |n relation to AGMs; shareholders are
inwvited to submit questions before the meeting.

The Chaimman also encourages shareholders at the AGM to ask questions and make comments about the Company’s operations
and the performance of the Board and senior execulives.

Mew Directors or Directors seeking re-election are given the oppartunity to address the AGM and to answer questions from
sharehalklers.

Recommendation 6.4:

A listed entity should give seturity holders the option 1o receive communications from, and send sommunications to. the entity and
its security registry electronically.

Disclosure:
Shareholders have the option of electing to receive all shareholder communications by email. The Company provides a printed

copy of the annual report only 1o those shareholders who have specifically elected to receive a printed copy. The annual report is
available on the Company website.
All announcements made 1o the ASX are available ta shareholdars by email netification when a shareholder provides the Company

with an email address and elects to be notified of all the Company's ASX announcements. In addition to this, Lhe ASX
announcements are made available on the Company's website.

The Company share register is managed and maintained by Computershare Invesior Services Ply Limited. Shareholders can
access their shareholding details or make enquiries about their current shareholding electronically by queting their Shareholder
Refeérence Number (SRN) or Holder identification Number (HIN), via the Computershare Investor Services inveslor centre
www.computershare com ar by emailing www.investorcentre.comicontact.
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nnciple £ Hecnanis2 and manaae risk

A listed entity should establish a sound risk management framework and periodically review the effectiveness of that framework.

Recommendation 7.1:
The Board of a listed entity should:

(a) have a committee or committees to oversee rizk, each of which:
& has atleast three members, a majonty of whom are independent Directors; and
o ischaired by an independent Direclor,
and disclose:
o fthecharer of the commitiee;
i the members of the committee; and

o as at the end of each reporting period, the number of times the committee met throughout the period and the individual
atlendances of the members at lhose meefings: or

(b} if it does not have a risk committes or committees thal satisfy (a) above, disclose that fact and the procasses it employs for
avarseaing the antity's risk managemeant framewark.

Disclosure:

The Board established an Audit and Risk Committee on 6 October 2017, with Mr David Cornell as the independent Committee

Chairman,

Since 6 October 2017 the Audit and Risk Committes has had five members — Mr David Comell, The Hon. Cheryl Edwardes AM,
Mr Malcolm James, Mr Andrew Haslam and Dr Vanessa Guthrie, Of these members three are considered to ba independent -
Mr David Comell, The Hon. Cheryl Edwardes AM and Mr Andrew Haslam, which represents a majority of the committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee Charter is made available on the Company’s website.

The number of Audit and Risk Committes meetings held dunng the 2018 financial year and the qualifications of the Directors are
disclosed in the Directors” Report.

Recommendation 7.2:
The Board or a committee of the Board should:

o review the entity's risk management framework at least annually to satisfy itself that it continues to be sound: and
+  disclose, in relation o each reporting pariod, whether such a review has taken place.

Disclosure:

The Board has adopled a Risk Management Policy, which sels out the Company's risk profile. Under the policy, the Board is
responsible for approving the Company's policies on risk oversight and management and safisfying itself that management has
developed and implemented a sound system of risk management and internal cantral.

Uinder the policy, the Board has delegated day-lo-day management of risk to the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer,
who is responsible for idenlifying, assessing, monitoring and managing risks. The Managing Direclor and Chief Executive Officer is
also responsible for updaling the Company's material business risks fo reflect any material changes, with the approval of the Board.

In fulfilling the duties of sk management, the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer has unrestricted access to Company
employees, contractors and records. The Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer may obtain ndependent expent advice on
any matter believed approprate within established authonty limits, or with the prior approval of the Board,

In addition, the following risk management measures have been adopled by the Board fo manage the Company's matenal business

rigks:

s |he Board has established authority limits for management which, if exceeded, will require prior Board approval;

. the Board has adopted a compliance procedure for the purpose of ensuring compliance with the Company's continuous
disclosure obligations; and

«  the Board has adopted a corporate governance manual which contains other policies lo assist the Company to establish and
maintain its governance practices,

A summary of the Risk Management Policy is made available an the Coampany's website.
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Management have the responsibility to design, implement and maintain the risk management and internal control systems to
manage the Company’s business risks and provide regular reporting.

During the 2018 financial year the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the adequacy of the Company's processes o identify,
analyse, evaluate, treat, monitor and review risk. Management have developed a risk register which includes details of the nisks
identified, risk assessments and mitigation plans.

Recommendation 7.3:
A listed entity should disclose:

. if it has an intamal audit function, how the function is structured and what role it performs; or

«  if it does not have an internal audit function, that fact and the processes it employs for evaluating and continually improving the
effectiveness of its risk management and internal control processes

Natifieation of deparfure:
The Company has not established an internal audit function.

Explanation for departure;
The Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are responsible for evaluating and continually
improving the effectiveness of its risk management and internal control processes.

An anmual declaration is provided to the Board by the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer in
accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001,

This declaration is:

+  founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control; and
. that the system iz operating effectively in all material respects in relation to financial reporting rizks.
In making the declaration the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer consider the size of the

Company, its complexity, number of persennel and its financial resources, o ensure the system of nsk management and intemal
control is appropriate.

The Audit and Risk Committee monitors and reviews the integrity of financial reporting and the Company’s internal financial control
systems and risk management systems,

Recommendation 7.4:

A listed enlity should disclose whether it has any malenal exposure to economic, envirenmental and sccial sustainability risks and,
if it does, how it manages or intends to manage those risks.

Disclosure:
The Board monitors all material risks that the Company is exposed to and actively seeks lo mitigate them, using resources
reasonably available to control those risks,

The activibes of the Company are focused on the Mulga Rock and Alligator River Projects. Uranium exploration, evaluation and
project development has inherent risks which the Company, utilising its own professional employees and consultants and working
in partnership with communities and authorities, actively seeks to mitigate against.

The material risks which the Company is exposed include, but are not limited to, the following:

. glabal uranium market, including commadity price and sales confracts

+  fthe ability to raise additional funding, both equity and debt finance

«  anti-nuclear energy industry activism

- world economy, along with foreign exchange and interest rate markets

» inherent risks associaled with project construction, commissioning and ongoing production

«  recruifing and retaining qualified personnel

The Board is responsible to overses the risk management function and the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer is in

charge of implementing an appropriate level of contral to mitigate these risks within the Company. The Board reviews all major
strategies and decisions and takes appropriate actions on a continuous basis.
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“Tincipe o e inerate 1amy a -.IIE 2spons i-'i".'

A listed entity should pay Director remuneration sufficient (o attract and rétain high quality Directors and design its executive
remunaralion to attract, retain and molivate high quality senior executives and lo align their interasts with the creation of valuea for
security holders,

Recommendation 8.1;
The Board of a listed enfity should:

(a} have a remuneration committee which;
haz at least three members, a majority of whom are independeant Directors; and
o s chaired by an independent Director,
and disclose:
o the charter of the commitiee;
o the members of the commitiee; and

as at the end of each reporting period, the number of times the committee meat throughaout the period and the individual
attendances of the membars at those meetings; or
(b} i it does not have 3 remuneration commitiee, disclose that fact and the processes it employs for sefting the level and
compaosition of remuneration for Directors and senior executives and ensuring that such remuneration is appropriate and
not excessve,

Disclosura!
The Company has a Remuneration Commiltes.

For the reporting period Mr Andrew Haslam was the independent Chairman of the Remuneration Committes,

During the reporting period the Remuneration Commiftee had five members — Mr Andrew Haslam, The Hon. Chery Edwardes AM,
Mr Dawvid Cornell, Mr Malcolm James and Dr Vanessa Guthre was appointed on 8 October 2017, Of these members three are
considerad to be indapendant = Mr David Comell, The Hon, Cheryl Edwardes AM and Mr Andrew Haslam, which represents a
majority of the commities.

The Remuneration Committee Charter is made available on the Company’s website.

The number of Remuneration Committee meetings held during the 2018 financial year and the gualifications of the Directors are
distlosed in the Directors” Report,

Recommendation 8.2;

A listed entity should separately disclose its policies and practices regarding the remuneration of non-executive Directors and the
remuneration of executive Directors and other senior executives,

Disclosure:

Mon-executive Directors are remunerated at a fiked fee for time, commitment and responsibilities. Remuneration for non-executive
Directors is not linked to individual performance.

Pay and rewards for axecutive Directors and senior executives consists of a base salary and performance incentives, Shor lam
performance incentives in the form on an annual bonus are dependent upon the Company's parformance in safaty, Company shara
price parformance comparad fo a peer group, and specific individual And Group work program achievements. Long term
performance incentives may include securities granted at the discretion of the Board and subject to specific time or Group work
program achievements. Senior executives are offered a compelitive level of base pay at market rates which are reviewed annually
o ensure market competitiveness.

Details of remuneration, including the Company's policy on remuneration, are contained in the Remuneration Report which forms
part of the Directors’ Report.
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Recommendation 8.3:
A listed entity which has an equity-based remuneration scheme should:

. have a policy on whether participants are permitted to enter into transactions (whether through the use of dervatives or
otherwise) which limit the economic risk of participating in the scheme; and

. disclose that policy or a summary of it.

The Beard has adopted a Policy for Trading in Company Securities. The Policy prohibits short term speculative trading of the
Company’s securities. Directors, officers and employees are required to first obtain clearance prior to undertaking any share trading.

A summary of the Company's Policy for Trading in Company Securities is made available on the Company's website.
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